GRANDVIEW CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 14, 2023

PLEASE NOTE: The maximum occupancy of the Council Chambers is 49 individuals at one time. Access to
exits must be kept clear to ensure everyone in the Chambers can safely exit in the event of an emergency.

This meeting will be held in person and will also be available via teleconference. For meeting information and
instructions, please contact City Hall at (509) 882-9200.

REGULAR MEETING — 7:00 PM PAGE
1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
2, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. APPROVE AGENDA
4. PRESENTATIONS
A 2023 Proclamation — Grandview High School DECA Month 1
5. PUBLIC COMMENT - At this time, the public may address the Council on any topic whether on

the agenda or not, except those scheduled for public hearing. If you would like to address the Council,
please step up to the microphone and give your name and address for the record. Your comments will
be limited to three minutes.

CONSENT AGENDA - items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on together by the Council,
unless a Councilmember requests that items be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed
and voted upon separately. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will be placed under
Unfinished and New Business.

A. Minutes of the January 24, 2023 Committee-of-the-Whole meeting 2-9
Minutes of the January 24, 2023 Council meeting 10-13
Payroli Check Nos. 13129-13157 in the amount of $29,016.24

Payroll Electronic Fund Transfers (EFT) Nos. 60977-60983 in the amount of $112,905.59
Payroli Direct Deposit 01/16/23-01/31/23 in the amount of $145,079.09

Claim Check Nos. 125825-125953 in the amount of $446,322.22

Grandview Municipal Court Judge Appointments 14

OMMOoOW

ACTIVE AGENDA - Notice: Items discussed at the 6:00 pm Committee-of-the-Whole meeting
of an urgent or time sensitive nature may be added to the active agenda pursuant to City Council
Procedures Manual Section 3.18(c).

A. Closed Record Public Hearing — Kyle Bunch dba Bunch Investments LLC 15-18
Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Rezone
¢ Grandview Hearing Examiner Public Hearing Packet dated January 11, 2023
is included as part of the agenda packet per reference in the Hearing
Examiner's Recommendation and Decision (1-76)

Page 1 of 2



10.
1.

PAGE

Ordinance No. 2023-02 amending the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 19-38
Designation, changing the zoning classification of certain lands and amending the

zoning map of the City of Grandview as requested by Kyle Bunch dba Bunch

Investments LLC for Parcel Nos. 230923-41409, 230923-41410 and 230923-41411

located at 500 Eim Street, Grandview, Washington

Resolution No. 2023-06 authorizing the adoption of the 2022 Yakima County 39-54
Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan

Ordinance No. 2023-03 granting to Ziply Fiber Pacific, LLC, (ZFP), a Delaware limited  55-64
liability company, the nonexclusive right, privilege, authority and franchise to locate,

construct, install, own, maintain, repair, replace, extend, operate and use facilities in,

upon, over, under, along, and across the franchise area for purposes of the transmissicn,
distribution and sale of telecommunications and communications services

Ordinance No. 2023-04 granting to Ziply Wireless, LLC, (ZW), a Delaware limited 65-74
liability company, the nonexclusive right, privilege, authority and franchise to locate,

construct, install, own, maintain, repair, replace, extend, operate and use facilities in,

upon, over, under, along, and across the franchise area for purposes of the transmission,
distribution and sale of telecommunications and communications services

Resolution No. 2023-07 approving Task Order No. 2023-01 with HLA Engineering and 75-79
Land Surveying, Inc., for the East Game Pond Pipeline Replacement

UNFINISHED AND NEW BUSINESS
CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND/OR STAFF REPORTS
MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS

ADJOURNMENT

Page 2 of 2



The City of Grandview Committee-of-the-Whole and Regular Council Meetings scheduled for
Tuesday, February 14, 2023 at 6:00 pm and 7:00 pm will be held in person and will also be
available via teleconference.

Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.

Join Zoom Meeting

https://us0Bweb.zoom.us/j/8966353747 17pwd=Nk02UDhWU2hpY01ITUSETzFyZW5Ydz09
To join via phone: +1 253 215 8782

Meeting ID: 896 6353 7471

Passcode: 576056



2023 PROCLAMATION
GRANDVIEW HIGH SCHOOL DECA

WHEREAS, the Grandview City Council recognizes the hard work
and services provided by the Grandview High School DECA Chapter; and,

WHEREAS, the GHS DECA Chapter performs and participates in
many community service activities; and,

WHEREAS, the Grandview City Council supports the GHS DECA
Chapter within the school and community,

NOW, THEREFORE, |, Mayor Gloria Mendoza of the City of
Grandview, Washington, and on behalf of the City Council, do hereby
proclaim February as DECA month in the City of Grandview and urge all
citizens to support efforts and activities of the GHS DECA Chapter.

Dated this 14™ day of February, 2023

Mayor Gloria Mendoza




GRANDVIEW CITY COUNCIL
COMMITTEE-OF-THE-WHOLE MEETING MINUTES
JANUARY 24, 2023
1. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Gloria Mendoza called the Committee-of-the-Whole (C.O.W.) meeting to order at 6:00
p.m., in the Council Chambers at City Hall.

The meeting was held in person and was also available via teleconference.
2 ROLL CALL

Present in person. Mayor Mendoza and Councilmembers David Diaz, Jessie Espinoza, Bill
Moore (Mayor Pro Tem), Robert Ozuna, Javier Rodriguez and Joan Souders

Present via teleconference: Councilmember Laura Flores

Absent: None

Staff present: City Administrator/Public Works Director Cus Arteaga, City Attorney Quinn Plant,
City Treasurer Matt Cordray, Fire Chief Pat Mason, Assistant Public Works Director Todd Dorsett
and City Clerk Anita Palacios

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

YVC Grandview Campus — Jessica Rodriguez, YVC Grandview Campus Student Body President,
provided an update on activities and events at the YVC Grandview Campus.

Pedro Navarrate, YVC Grandview Campus Assistant Dean, advised that the Grandview Campus
enroliment has increased 15% with approximately 2,915 enrolled students.

Mainstreet Grandview — Ray Vining on behalf of Mainstreet Grandview, provided comments, a
copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as part of these minutes.

4. NEW BUSINESS

A. Marketing Promotion for Business Development Grants — Field Group
Marketing & Advertising

Nicole Donegan, Account Manager with Field Group Marketing & Advertising presented the
marketing promotion for the business development grants.

B. Resolution No. 2023-05 approving Task Order No. 2023-02 with HLA
Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., for the West Fifth Street Resurfacing
improvements -Euclid to Avenue E & Elm Street Resurfacing
Improvements — Bonnieview Road to Wine Country Road

City Administrator Arteaga explained that the City received Arterial Preservation Program funding
from the Washington State Transportation Improvement Board for the resurfacing of West Fifth
Street, Euclid Road to Avenue E and Elm Street, Bonnieview Road te Wine Country Road.
Engineering design work would begin immediately following receipt of the executed Task Order.

2



Committee-of-the-Whole Meeting Minutes
January 24, 2023
Page 2

Construction was anticipated to occur in 2023. He presented Task Order No. 2023-02 with HLA
Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., to provide professional engineering and land surveying
services for the West Fifth Street Resurfacing Improvements — Euclid to Avenue E & Elm Street
Resurfacing Improvements — Bonnieview Road to Wine Country Road with an estimated fee for
services in the amount of $59,590.00 for design engineering and $64,170.00 for construction
engineering.

Discussion took place.

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Diaz, the C.O.W. moved
a Resolution No. 2023-05 approving Task Order No. 2023-02 with HLA Engineering and
Land Surveying, Inc., for the West Fifth Street Resurfacing Improvements -Euclid to
Avenue E & Eim Street Resurfacing Improvements — Bonnieview Road to Wine Country
Road to the January 24, 2023 regular meeting for consideration.

Roll Call Vote:

Councilmember Diaz — Yes
Councilmember Espinoza — Yes
Councilmember Flores —- Yes
Councilmember Moore — Yes
Councilmember Ozuna — Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders — Yes

C. Resolution authorizing the adoption of the 2022 Yakima County Multi-
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan

Fire Chief Mason explained that Yakima County was required to maintain a Hazard Mitigation
Plan for the County. Ali of the jurisdictions located in Yakima County and Yakima County itself
benefit from this opportunity to recognize potential hazards located in their areas. It also gives
the cities the opportunity to implement plans to help lessen the impact of those hazards if they
occur. This could include such things as flooding, windstorms, hazardous materials incidents,
major road closures and etc. The current plan was updated in 2015. From March to October of
2022, Fire Chief Mason was part of a team that worked on updating the plan. The 2015 Yakima
County Hazard Mitigation Plan was revised based on current data and needs from March to
October of 2022. It was updated and submitted for review to Washington State and the Federal
Emergency Management Agency. It now has to be adopted by the local jurisdictions that want to
participate in the implementation. Participation in the plan allows the City to identify any areas of
concern. It also makes the City eligible for any funding that may become available to either limit
any damage that may be done if an event happens and/or receive funding to help mitigate an
emergency that happens after the fact.

Discussion took place.

On motion by Councilmember Ozuna, second by Councilmember Souders, the C.O.W.
moved a Resolution authorizing the adoption of the 2022 Yakima County Multi-
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan to the February 14, 2023 regular meeting for
consideration.



Committee-of-the-Whole Meeting Minutes
January 24, 2023
Page 3

Roll Call Vote:

Councilmember Diaz - Yes
Councilmember Espinoza — Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore — Yes
Councilmember Ozuna - Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders — Yes

D. Economic Development Executive Summary — Councilmember Diaz

Councilmember Diaz presented the Economic Development Executive Summary and the 2022
Council Retreat Priorities.

Discussion took place.

Mayor Mendoza suggested that a Council committee be formed to review the Economic
Development Strategic Guide and the Council Retreat Priorities to determine short term,
intermediate and long term progress to date.

Councilmembers Diaz and Flores volunteered to meet with the Mayor and City Administrator to
address economic development.

5. RECESS & RECONVENE OF C.O.W. MEETING

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Souders, the C.O.W.
recessed the Committee-of-the-Whole meeting at 7:00 p.m., to reconvene following the
regular Council meeting.

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Souders, Council
reconvened the Committee-of-the-Whole meeting to discuss the following items at 7:20
p.m.

E. ARPA Funding Update
City Treasurer Cordray provided an update on the overall ARPA budget balance as follows:
2021 Revenue $1,547,711  Actual
2022 Revenue $1,647,712  Actual
Total $3,095,423
2021 Expenditures  $34,128 Actual
2022 Expenditures  $2,134,000 Budget
Total $2,168,128
ARPA Fund Balance $927,295 (needs to be allocated by 2024)

He also presented the pending ARPA projects as follows:



Committee-of-the-Whole Meeting Minutes
January 24, 2023

Page 4
ARPA Pending Projects
Project Budget Balance Balance
New Small Business Grants - ARPA | $ 50,000.00 | 5 49,889.42 [On schedule for new year
Food & Nutrition Assistance $ 1800000 | % 18,000.00 |Increase to $50,000 - use Faod Banks
Ichamber of Commerce Support $ 20,000.00 | $ 20,000.00 |Bill to ask CofC and revisit in April
|Falr[Rodeo Support $ 1000000 )% 10,000.00 |Revisit in April
Resident's Utilities Support $ 50,000.00 | S 50,000.00 |Eliminate - no need
Retention Incentive for New PD Hird $ 30,000.00 | $  29,995.44 |Revisit In April - Cus to talk to Chief
Downtown Beautification $ 100,000.00 | $ 100,000.00 |Combine with Entrance Beautification
Entrance Beautification $ 50,000.00{ $ 50,000.00 |Combine with Downtown Beatification
Youth Center Activities $ 50,000.00 | $ 26,040.93 |Keep for Summer 2023 activities
Skateboard Park for Youth $ 10000005 993544 Combine with Pool Splash Pad - Use up to $30K for design of skatepark
Pool Splash Pad $ 100,000.00 | $ 100,000.00 |Combine with Skateboard Park - Diaz & Espinosa will work on this.
Grandview/Sunnyside Pathway $ 50,000.00 | $ 49,995.43 |Cus to look into this for status of project
Totals $538,000.00 $ 513,916.66
Actlon for City Council Approval DRAFT
|[Feod & Nutrition Assistance $ 18000.00 | § 18,000.00 Jincrease Food & Nutrition Assistance to $50,000 from Utilities - use Food
IResident's Utilities Support $ 50,000.00)$ 50,000.00 IBanks for distribution of grants. Eliminate Resident's Utllities - No need.
Downtown Beautification S 100,000.00 | $ 100,000.00 |Comblne these together into one overall amount. Use for same purposes.
Entrance Beautification $ 5000000 $ 50,000.00 IBusinesses will submit applications for facade improvements.
Skateboard Park for Youth $ 10,000.00|$  9,995.44 |[Move Pool Splash Pad amount of $100K to Skateboard Park for new balance
of $110,000. Use up to $30K for design of park & perhaps hire fundraiser to
Pool Splash Pad $ 100,000.00 | $ 100,000:00 |},c15 with fundraising for skateboard park,

Discussion took place. The pending projects would be further discussed at the February 14, 2023
C.O.W. meeting.

Councilmember Ozuna presented the 2023 New or Relocating Small Business Grant guidelines,
application and scoring rubric.

Discussion took place.

Counciimembers Espinoza and Flores volunteered to help review and vet the grant applications.

F.

AND

Ordinance granting to Ziply Fiber Pacific, LLC, (ZFP), a_Delaware limited
liability company, the nonexclusive right, privilege. authority and franchise
to locate, construct, install, own, maintain, repair, replace. extend, operate
and use facilities in, upon, over, under, along, and across the franchise
area for purposes of the transmission, distribution and sale of

telecommunications and communications services




Committee-of-the-Whole Meeting Minutes
January 24, 2023
Page 5

G. Ordinance granting to Ziply Wireless, LLC, !ZW], a Delaware limited

liabili i igh and franchise

to locate, construct, install, own, maintain, repair, replace, extend, operate
and use facilities in, upon, over, under, along, and across the franchise
area for purposes of the transmission, distribution and sale of

telecommunications and communications services

City Administrator Arteaga explained that Ziply Fiber Pacific and Ziply Wireless contacted the City
in November 2022 requesting a franchise agreement to provide fiber telecommunication services
within the City. Ziply submitted two proposed franchise agreements for legal review. The City
Attorney reviewed the proposed franchise agreements and recommended approval.

Discussion took place.

On motion by Councilmember Ozuna, second by Councilmember Rodriguez, the C.O.W.
moved an ordinance granting to Ziply Fiber Pacific, LLC, (ZFP), a Delaware limited liability
company, the nonexclusive right, privilege, authority and franchise to locate, construct,
install, own, maintain, repair, replace, extend, operate and use facilities in, upon, over,
under, along, and across the franchise area for purposes of the transmission, distribution
and sale of telecommunications and communications services AND an ordinance granting
to Ziply Wireless, LLC, (ZW), a Delaware limited liability company, the nonexclusive right,
privilege, authority and franchise to locate, construct, install, own, maintain, repair,
replace, extend, operate and use facilities in, upon, over, under, along, and across the
franchise area for purposes of the transmission, distribution and sale of
telecommunications and communications services to the February 14, 2023 regular
meeting for consideration.

Roll Call Vote:

Councilmember Diaz — Yes
Councilmember Espinoza — Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore — Yes
Councilmember Ozuna - Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez - Yes
Councilmember Souders - Yes

6. OTHER BUSINESS — None
7. ADJOURNMENT

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Ozuna, the C.O.W.
meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m.

Mayor Gloria Mendoza Anita Palacios, City Clerk



Anita Palacios
“

From: Ray Vining <rdvining@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, January 24, 2023 4:31 PM

To: Anita Palacios

Subject: R Vining Comments before the Council of the Whole for 24 Jan

CAUTION: External Email

Anita,
Here is a digital version of my comments from Mainstreet, The Museum and myself for this evening.

All the Best,

Ray

Your prompt response makes it possible to make informed decisions to benefit our properties and program!

...No amount of failure could flag his spirits, and he scrambled over every obstacle with the kind of good humor and

determination that makes a person fun.
....from Michael Blakes' Dances with Wolves

My goal is to bring people together to build good for others thereby increasing the level of good fellowship
and a little better world.



Anita Palacios

LR

From: Ray Vining <rdvining@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, January 24, 2023 5:12 PM
To: Anita Palacios

Subject: Retry on the comments

CAUTION: External Email

Results of the Mainstreet Retreat

PN

Finding out what is necessary for promotion from affiliate to associate membership.

coomw

ii. A non starter is not having a full time executive director
iv.

So just how important is an executive director? And how vital is mainstreet?

Is it vital enough for the City of Grandview to subsidize the salary of a full time director? According to
Jonell McCoy, the state Mainstreet Specialist for Affiliate members most cities subsidize the salaries of
executive directors for 5 years while their Main Street organization works to qualify for the Associate level.

You must be asking yourselves what is the big deal? It is seen as a clear path to a vibrant
downtown!

What has happened before? Failure and continued decline. (the 10 year try cycle)

The return of B&O taxes by a supportive business community to re-vitalize and keep vibrant the downtown
core.

Let’s talk about subsidizing the mainstreet director inorder to bring in the sustainable funding to energize
downtown.

| received an email from “Street Sounds” the folks who build the downtown audio systems. The
company is back in business and ready to keep Grandview on their production schedule.

2 o

Do we proceed?



5. The History of Grandview. Record it or loose it! The museum is working hard to gather, store

6. and make accessible our history. We are pursuing an initiative that likely will result in the digitization
of the Grandview Herald. Making for now the history from around 1922 to 1935 or so available and
maybe even with the permission of the owner up to

7. the present day! That is data for history but not the story of history. | believe the City, School District,
Port and substantial community organizations should view contributing to recording history as a social
obligation benefiting future generations.

Have you thought about what is happening to print media? It is vanishing! Replacing it is a flood of
information. | fear the essence of our existence will be history will vanish into a sea of social media and digital
reports.

Please consider submitting an annual report of city progress to the people of Grandview and taking steps to
ensure this report becomes a part of our recorded history.

4

5.

6. Please consider incorporating one or two high school students within the council. | believe the

7. considerable political apathy stems from the exclusion of youth from decision making. | suggest they
be allowed to comment on business before the council, more to be encouraged to comment. That they
be allowed to state their position on items to be voted

upon by the elected council.

© o

The best advise I've ever received on working with teenagers is to treat them like adults but be ready to guide

when needed, to pick them up when they fall and to continue to encourage them. That is a recipe for building
leaders.

Your prompt response makes it possible to make informed decisions to benefit our properties and program!

...No amount of failure could flag his spirits, and he scrambled over every obstacle with the kind of good humor and
determination that makes a person fun.

....from Michael Blakes' Dances with Wolves

My goal is to bring people together to build good for others thereby increasing the level of good fellowship
and a little better world.



GRANDVIEW CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
JANUARY 24, 2023

1. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Gloria Mendoza called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers
at City Hall.

The meeting was held in person and was also available via teleconference.

Present in person: Mayor Mendoza and Councilmembers David Diaz, Jessie Espinoza, Bill
Moore (Mayor Pro Tem), Robert Ozuna, Javier Rodriguez and Joan Souders

Present via teleconference: Councilmember Laura Flores
Absent: None

Staff present: City Administrator/Public Works Director Cus Arteaga, City Attorney Quinn Plant,
City Treasurer Matt Cordray, Assistant Public Works Director Todd Dorsett and City Clerk Anita
Palacios

2 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mayor Mendoza led the pledge of allegiance.
3. APPROVE AGENDA

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Rodriguez, Council
approved the January 24, 2023 regular meeting agenda as presented.

Roll Call Vote:

Councilmember Diaz - Yes
Councilmember Espinoza — Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore — Yes
Councilmember Ozuna - Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez - Yes
Councilmember Souders — Yes

4, PRESENTATIONS — None

5. PUBLIC COMMENT - None

6. CONSENT AGENDA

On motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, second by Councilmember Diaz, Council
approved the Consent Agenda consisting of the following:

A. Minutes of the January 10, 2023 Committee-of-the-Whole meeting
B. Minutes of the January 10, 2023 Council meeting

10



Regular Meeting Minutes
January 24, 2023
Page 2

Payroll Check Nos. 131134-13128 in the amount of $102,688.42

Payroll Electronic Fund Transfers (EFT) Nos. 60969-60973 in the amount of
$94,305.58

Payroll Direct Deposit 01/01/23-01/15/23 in the amount of $123,493.91

Claim Check Nos. 125726-125824 in the amount of $665,942.09

nm oo

Roll Call Vote:

Councilmember Diaz — Yes
Councilmember Espinoza — Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore — Yes
Councilmember Ozuna — Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders — Yes

7. ACTIVE AGENDA

A. Resolution No. 2023-02 authorizing the Mayor to sign a Latecomer’s
Agreement between the City of Grandview and Birdie Shots, LLC, reqarding

reimbursement of sewer lift station and sewer force main costs

This item was previously discussed at the January 10, 2023 C.O.W. meeting.

On motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, second by Councilmember Espinoza, Council
approved Resolution No. 2023-02 authorizing the Mayor to sign a Latecomer’s Agreement
between the City of Grandview and Birdie Shots, LLC, regarding reimbursement of sewer
lift station and sewer force main costs.

Roll Call Vote:

Councilmember Diaz - Yes
Councilmember Espinoza — Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore - Yes
Councilmember Ozuna - Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Counciimember Souders — Yes

B. Resolution No. 2023-03 approving Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2019-
04 with HLA Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., for the Sludge Drying
Bed Evaluation and Design

This item was previously discussed at the January 10, 2023 C.O.W. meeting.
On motion by Councilmember Ozuna, second by Councilmember Diaz, Council approved

Resolution No. 2023-03 approving Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2019-04 with HLA
Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., for the Sludge Drying Bed Evaluation and Design.

11



Regular Meeting Minutes
January 24, 2023
Page 3

Roll Call Vote:

Councilmember Diaz — Yes
Councilmember Espinoza — Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore — Yes
Councilmember Ozuna — Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders — Yes

C. Resolution No. 2023-04 authorizing the Mayor to sign the Local Agency A&E
Professional Services Negotiated Hourly Rate Consultant Agreement with
HLA Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., for the Old Inland Empire
Highway Improvements

This item was previously discussed at the January 10, 2023 C.O.W. meeting.

On motion by Councilmember Diaz, second by Councilmember Moore, Council approved
Resolution No. 2023-04 authorizing the Mayor to sign the Local Agency A&E Professional
Services Negotiated Hourly Rate Consultant Agreement with HLA Engineering and Land
Surveying, Inc., for the Old Inland Empire Highway Improvements.

Roll Cail Vote:

Councilmember Diaz ~ Yes
Councilmember Espinoza — Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore - Yes
Councilmember Ozuna — Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders — Yes

D. Resolution No. 2023-05 approving Task Order No. 2023-02 with HLA
Engineering and Land Surveying. Inc., for the West Fifth Street Resurfacing
Improvements — Euclid to Avenue E & Elm Street Resurfacing Improvements
— Bonnieview Road to Wine Country Road

This item was previously discussed at the January 24, 2023 C.0.W. meeting.

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Ozuna, Council approved
Resolution No. 2023-05 approving Task Order No. 2023-02 with HLA Engineering and Land
Surveying, Inc., for the West Fifth Street Resurfacing Improvements — Euclid to Avenue E
& Elm Street Resurfacing Improvements — Bonnieview Road to Wine Country Road.

Roll Call Vote:

Councilmember Diaz — Yes
Councilmember Espinoza — Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore — Yes
Councilmember Ozuna - Yes

12



Regular Meeting Minutes
January 24, 2023
Page 4

Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders — Yes
8. UNFINISHED AND NEW BUSINESS - None

9. CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND/OR STAFF REPORTS

Grandridge Road Nail Issue — Assistant Public Works Director Dorsett reported that the City was
experiencing roofing nails being thrown into the street along Grandridge Road near Munson Lane.
The Public Works Department would be working with the Police Department to resolve the issue.

10. MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS

AWC City Action Days — Councilmember Ozuna reported that meetings have been scheduled
with 15% Legislative District Senator Nikki Torres and Representatives Bruce Chandler and Bryan
Sandlin as part of the AWC City Action Days.

11. ADJOURNMENT

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Souders, Council
meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m.

Mayor Gloria Mendoza Anita Palacios, City Clerk

13



CITY OF GRANDVIEW
AGENDA ITEM HISTORY/COMMENTARY
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

ITEM TITLE

Grandview Municipal Court Judge Appointments

AGENDA NO.: Consent Agenda 6 (G)

AGENDA DATE: February 14, 2023

DEPARTMENT

Municipal Court

FUNDING CERTIFICATION (City Treasurer)
(If applicable)

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR REVI %
Anita Palacios, City Clerk : :

CITY ADMINISTRATOR

MAYOR

77

ITEM HISTGRY (Previous council reviews, action related to this item, and other pertinent history)

RCW 3.50.040 requires that the City appoint a municipal judge or judges to preside over the Grandview
Municipal Court either every four years or when there is a change.

ITEM COMMENTARY (Backgroun'd,' discussion, key points, recommendations, etc.) Please identify any or all
impacts this proposed action would have on the City budget, personnel resources, and/or residents.

Yakima County Courts has requested that the following judges be appointed effective January 1, 2023 through
December 31, 2027 as Grandview Municipal Court judges:

Judge Donald Engel

Judge Gary Hintze

Judge Brian Sanderson
Judge Alfred Schweppe
Commissioner Kevin Eilmes

ACTION PROPOSED

Approve the appointments of Judge Donald Engel, Judge Gary Hintze, Judge Brian Sanderson, Judge Alfred
Schweppe and Commissioner Kevin Eilmes as Grandview Municipa! Court Judges in compliance with RCW
3.50.040 effective January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2027.

14



CITY OF GRANDVIEW
NOTICE OF CLOSED RECORD PUBLIC HEARING
BUNCH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT & REZONE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Grandview will hold a closed
record public hearing on Tuesday, February 14, 2022 at 7:00 p.m., to consider the Hearing
Examiner's recommendation that the City Council approve the following:

Applicant(s): Kyle Bunch dba Bunch Investments LLC

Property Owner(s): Bunch Investments LLC

Proposed Project: Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Rezone

Current Comprehensive Plan Designation: Industrial

Current Zoning: M-1 Light Industrial

Current Use: Residential

Proposed Comprehensive Plan Designation: Residential

Proposed Zoning: R-2 Medium Density Residential

Location of Project: 500 Elm Street, Grandview, Yakima County, Washington.
Parcel No.: 230923-41409, 230923-41410, 230923-41411

The closed record public hearing will be held in person in the Council Chambers at City Hall,
207 West Second Street, Grandview, Washington and will also be available via
teleconference as follows:

Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/[/896635374712pwd=Nk02UDhWU2hpY01ITUSETzFyZW5Vdz09
To join via phone: +1 253 215 8782

Meeting ID: 896 6353 7471

Passcode: 576056

A copy of the Hearing Examiner's recommendation is available at no charge from the City
Clerk's Office, 207 West Second Street, Grandview, WA 98930, PH: (509) 882-9200 or
anitap@grandview.wa.us.

CITY OF GRANDVIEW
Anita G. Palacios, MMC, City Clerk

Publish: Grandview Herald — January 18, 2023

15



CITY OF GRANDVIEW
CITY COUNCIL

CLOSED RECORD PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE

THE FOLLOWING PROCEDURE IS USED BY THE GRANDVIEW CITY COUNCIL TO
MEET APPEARANCE OF FAIRNESS REQUIREMENTS AND TO CREATE OR
SUPPLEMENT THE HEARING RECORD:

MAYOR
Tonight's closed record public hearing will include the following land use proposal:

Applicant(s): Kyle Bunch dba Bunch Investments LLC

Property Owner(s): Bunch Investments LLC

Proposed Project: Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Rezone

Current Comprehensive Plan Designation: Industrial

Current Zoning: M-1 Light Industrial

Current Use: Residential

Proposed Comprehensive Plan Designation: Residential

Proposed Zoning: R-2 Medium Density Residential

Location of Project: 500 Elm Street, Grandview, Yakima County, Washington.
Parcel No.: 230923-41409, 230923-41410, 230923-41411

The closed record public hearing will now begin:

1. This hearing must be fair in form and substance as well as appearance,
therefore:
a. Is there anyone in the audience who objects to my participation as Mayor

or any Councilmember’s participation in these proceedings? (If objections,
the objector must state his/her name, address, and the reason for the
objection.)

b. Do any of the Counciimembers have an interest in this property or issue?
Do any of you stand to gain or lose any financial benefit as a result of the
outcome of this hearing? Can you hear and consider this in a fair and
objective manner?

C. Has any member of the Council engaged in communication outside this
hearing with opponents or proponents on these issues to be heard? If so,
that member must place on the record the substance of any such
communication so that other interested parties may have the right at this
hearing to rebut the substance of the communication.

d. Thank you, the hearing will continue.

(or)

CLOSED RECORD PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE -1 1 6



At this point, Councilmember ***** will be excusing him/herself from the
meeting. [Ask Councilmember to state his/her reasons for being excused.]

2 The purpose of this hearing is for the Council to review the record and consider
the pertinent facts relating to this issue.

3. No new testimony will be allowed. Any clarification of the record being requested
by the Councilmembers will first be authorized by the Mayor after consulting with
the City Attorney.

4. The record generated will be provided by staff. Staff will now provide a review of
the record.

5. Councimembers will now consider the record and discuss among themselves

the facts and testimony from the open record hearing. (Discussion and any
requests for clarification of the record are made).

(Requests for clarification are directed to the Mayor and must be specific to the
record. The Mayor after consulting with the City Attorney will authorize the
clarification or deny it based on the opinion of the City Attorney.

6. If clarification of the record is authorized:
a. When you address the Council, begin by stating your name and address
for the record.
b. Speak slowly and clearly.
c. You will be allowed to only provide the clarification of the record as

authorized. No new testimony will be allowed.

i Now that we have reviewed the record concerning this issue, this subject is open
for decision. Council may:
a. Approve as recommended.
b. Approve with conditions.
C. Modify, with or without the applicant's concurrence, provided that the
modifications do not:
i. Enlarge the area or scope of the project.
ii. Increase the density or proposed building size.
iii. Significantly increase adverse environmental impacts as
determined by the responsible official.
iv. Deny (re-application or re-submittal is permitted).

V. Deny with prejudice (re-application or re-submittal is not allowed for
one year).
vi. Remand for further proceedings and/or evidentiary hearing in

accordance with Section 14.09.070.

CLOSED RECORD PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE - 2 1 7



CITY OF GRANDVIEW
AGENDA ITEM HISTORY/COMMENTARY
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

ITEM TITLE: AGENDA NO. Active 7 (A) & (B)

Closed Record Public Hearing — Kyle Bunch dba Bunch AGENDA DATE: February 14, 2023
Investments LLC Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Rezone

Ordinance No. 2023-02 amending the Comprehensive Plan
Future Land Use Map Designation, changing the zoning
classification of certain lands and amending the zoning map of
the City of Grandview as requested by Kyle Bunch dba Bunch
Investments LLC for Parcel Nos. 230923-41409, 230923-41410
and 230923-41411 located at 500 Elm Street, Grandview,
Washington

DEPARTMENT FUNDING CERTIFICATION (City Treasurer)
(If applicable)
Planning/Hearing Examiner

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR REVIEW

Anita Palacios, City Clerk (Planning) Q y,

cngﬁ INISTRATOR MAYQOR :
i | M;M@u

ITEM HISTORY (Previous council reviews, action related to this item, and other pertinent history)

The City recsved a Comprehensive Plan Amendment Application and Rezone Application submitted by
property owner Kyle Bunch dba Bunch Investments LLC, requesting a comprehensive plan amendment and
rezone of Parcel Nos. 230923-41409, 230923-41410 and 230923-41411 located at 500 EIm Street, Grandview,
Washington. The comprehensive plan amendment would change the future land use of the parcel from
industrial to residential and rezone the property from M-1 Light Industrial to R-2 Medium Density Residential.
The current use of the property is residential.

ITEM COMMENTARY (Background, discussion, key points, recommendations, etc.) Please identify any or all
impacts this proposed action would have on the City budget, personnel resources, and/or residents.

On January 11, 2023, the Hearing Examiner conducted an open record public hearing to receive comments on
the proposed comprehensive plan amendment and rezone. A copy of the Hearing Examiner's
Recommendation CPA #2023-01 AND RZ #2023-01 dated January 25, 2023 is attached.

ACTION PROPOSED

Recommend Council accept the Hearing Examiner’s conclusions and recommendation that the City Council
approve the requested amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designation of Parcel
Nos. 230923-41409, 230923-41410 and 230923-41411 from the industrial designation to the residential
designation and approve the requested rezone of the parcels from the M-1 Light Industrial District to the R-2
Medium Density Residential District as outlined in Recommendation CPA #2023-01 AND RZ #2023-01.

Further recommend that Council approve Ordinance No. 2023-02 amending the Comprehensive Plan Future
Land Use Map Designation, changing the zoning classification of certain lands and amending the zoning map of
the City of Grandview as requested by Kyle Bunch dba Bunch Investments LLC for Parcel Nos. 230923-41409,
230923-41410 and 230923-41411 located at 500 Elm Street, Grandview, Washington. 1 8



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-02

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP
DESIGNATION, CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF CERTAIN LANDS
AND AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW AS
REQUESTED BY KYLE BUNCH DBA BUNCH INVESTMENTS LLC FOR PARCEL
NOS. 230923-41409, 230923-41410 AND 230923-41411 LOCATED AT 500 ELM
STREET, GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON

WHEREAS, the City of Grandview Hearing Examiner, upon application and after
due notice pursuant to Grandview Municipal Code Chapter 14, conducted an open
record public hearing on January 11, 2023 upon an application to amend the
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map Designation and to Rezone Parcel Nos.
230923-41409, 230923-41410 and 23092341411 located at 500 Elm Street,
Grandview, WA, which was duly filed by Kyle Bunch dba Bunch Investments LLC; and

WHEREAS, the Hearing Examiner, after receiving public comments and
reviewing the staff report containing staff’s findings of fact, issued his recommendations
dated January 25, 2023 entitled CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2032-01, copy attached,
recommending said Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designation
amendment and Rezone applications to the City Council for approval; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Grandview, after due notice pursuant
to Grandview Municipal Code Chapter 14, conducted a closed record public hearing for
said rezone on February 14, 2023 to consider the conclusions and recommendations by
the Hearing Examiner; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, after reviewing the Hearing Examiner's conclusions
and recommendations, and having deliberated upon said matter, accepted the Hearing
Examiner's recommendations as their own and approved the Kyle Bunch dba Bunch
Investments LLC Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designation amendment
and Rezone CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01.

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW,
WASHINGTON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City of Grandview Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map
and the City of Grandview Zoning Map, copies of which are on file in the office of the
Grandview City Clerk, be, and the same are hereby amended for Parcel Nos. 230923-
41409, 230923-41410 and 23092341411 located at 500 Elm Street, Grandview, WA
consisting of 0.57-acres located at 500 Elm Street, Grandview, WA, as follows, to-wit:

s Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map amended from Industrial to

Residential; and

o Zoning Map amended from M-1 Light Industrial to R-2 Medium Density

Residential District.



Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after its
passage and publication as required by law.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at its regular
meeting on February 14, 2023.

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

PUBLISHED: 2/16/2023
EFFECTIVE: 2/19/2023



City of Grandview, Washington
Hearing Examiner’s Recommendations

January 25, 2023

In the Matter of Application fora )
Comprehensive Plan Amendment )
And for a Rezone of Three Parcels )

Submitted by:
Kyle Bunch d/b/a CPA #2023-01
Bunch Investments LLC RZ #2023-01

To Amend the Comprehensive
Plan Future Land Use Map
Designation from Industrial
To Residential and Rezone
Parcels on South Elm Street
From the M-1 Light Industrial
District to the R-2 Medium
Density Residential District

A g T T S N N W W

A. Introductory Findings. The introductory findings relative to the hearing

process for these applications may be summarized as follows:

(1) The Hearing Examiner conducted an open record public hearing for these
applications on January 11, 2023.

(2) Byron Gumz, the YVCOG Regional Land Use Manager serving as
Planner for the City of Grandview, presented his staff report which recommended

Kyle Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 1
Comprehensive Plan Amendment

From Industrial to Residential and

Rezone from M-1 Light Industrial

To R-2 Medium Density Residential

Three parcels on South Elm Street

CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

21



approval of both the Comprehensive Plan Amendment application and the Rezone
application for the reasons set forth therein.

(3) City Administrator/Public Works Director Cus Arteaga answered
questions that were asked, and City Clerk Anita Palacios indicated that a written
comment relative to this application was received from the Sunnyside Valley
Irrigation District (SVID).

(4) The applicant, Kyle Bunch, testified in favor of approval of the
applications. The only written comment was from SVID which indicated that there
are no SVID facilities within the parcels.

(5) No one submitted any written comments or testimony in opposition to
these applications.

(6) The recommendations for these applications have been issued within 14
days of the open record public hearing as required by Subsection 14.09.030(A)(4)
of the Grandview Municipal Code (GMC).

B. Summary of Recommendations. The Hearing Examiner recommends that

the Grandview City Council approve the requested amendment to the Compre-
hensive Plan Future Land Use Map designation of the three parcels from Industrial
to Residential and the requested Rezone of the three parcels from the M-1 Light
Industrial District to the R-2 Medium Density Residential District,

C. Basis_for Recommendations. Based upon a view of the site and

surrounding area without anyone else present on January 11, 2023; the information
contained in the staff report, exhibits, testimony and other evidence presented at an

open record public hearing on January 11, 2023; and a consideration of the standards

Kyle Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 2
Comprehensive Plan Amendment

From Industrial to Residential and

Rezone from M-1 Light Industrial

To R-2 Medium Density Residential

Three parcels on South Elm Street

CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

22



and criteria for approval of amendments to Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use
Map designations and for approval of Rezones; the Hearing Examiner makes the

following:

FINDINGS

I. Applicant/Property Owner, The applicant and the property owner is Kyle
Bunch d/b/a Bunch Investments LLC, 2492 Grandview Pavement Road, Mabton,
Washington 98935.

II. Location. The location of the three parcels which are each slightly more than
8,000 square feet is on the west side of the 500 block of South Elm Street south of
the intersection of South Elm Street and East 5™ Street. There are existing single-
family residences on two of the parcels and a duplex is planned for the vacant parcel
located between them. The Assessor’s Parcel Numbers are 230923-41409, 230923-
41410 and 230923-41411.

III. Proposal. These applications request approval of an amendment to the
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designation of the subject parcels from
the Industrial to the Residential designation and also approval of a Rezone from the

M-1 Light Industrial District to the R-2 Medium Density Residential District,

Kyle Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 3
Comprehensive Plan Amendment

From Industrial to Residential and

Rezone from M-1 Light Industrial

To R-2 Medium Density Residential

Three parcels on South Elm Street

CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

23



1V. Floodplain, Shoreline and Other Critical Area. The subject parcels are

not within or near a floodplain, a shoreline regulated by the Shoreline Master
Program or other critical area regulated by Chapter 18.06 of the Grandview
Municipal Code (GMC).

V. Public Notice. Public notice of the open record public hearing of J anuary 11,

2023, was given in the following ways pursuant to GMC §14.07 030(B):

Notice mailed to owners of property within 300 feet: December 7, 2023
Notice posted at City Hall, Library, Police Dept. & website: December 7, 2023
Notice posted in three places on the property: December 7, 2023
Notice published in the Grandview Herald: December 7, 2023

VL. Environmental Review under the State Environmental Policy Act
(SEPA). On December 7, 2022, the City distributed a Notice of Application and
Public Hearing advising of a preliminary SEPA Determination of Non-Significance
(DNS) under the optional DNS process of WAC 197-11-355. Cus Arteaga, the
City’s SEPA Responsible Official, thereafier issued a final SEPA Determination of
Non-Significance (DNS) on December 29, 2022. It was not appealed.

VII. Zoning, Comprehensive Plan and Land Uses. The Zoning, Compre-

hensive Plan and Land Uses of the three parcels under consideration may be

described as follows:

Kyle Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 4
Comprehensive Plan Amendment

From Industrial to Residential and

Rezone from M-1 Light Industrial

To R-2 Medium Density Residential

Three parcels on South Elm Street

CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

24



(1) The parcels are currently within the M-1 Light Industrial zoning district,
The purpose of the Light Industrial District is to preserve areas for industrial and
related uses of such a nature that they do not create serious problems of
compatibility with other kinds of land uses. Uses permitted in this district should
not generate noise levels, light, odor, or fumes that would constitute a nuisance or
hazard.

(2) The proposed zoning is R-2 Medium Density Residential District. The
purpose of this district is to provide a medium density residential environment.
Lands within this district generally should contain multiple unit residential
structures of a scale compatible with structures in lower density districts with useful
yard spaces. The R-2 district is intended to allow for a gradual increase in density
from low density residential districts and, where compatible, can provide a transition
between different use areas.

(3) These three parcels are currently within the Industrial designation of the
Comprehensive Plan. The purpose of that designation is to include areas for
industrial development including manufacturing, processing, packaging or storage
of products or articles. These areas may also be appropriate for large commercial
development and for public facilities such as public works shops, water and
wastewater facilities, and facilities of regional or statewide stgnificance.

(4) The proposed Comprehensive Plan designation for these three parcels is
Residential which would be an extension of the Residential designation to the north
and to the east of the parcels. The purpose of the Residential designation is to include
areas that are appropriate for rural, single-family and multifamily residential living,

(5) The nearby properties have the following zoning, Comprehensive Plan
and land use characteristics:

Direction Zoning Comprehensive Plan Land Use
North: M-1 Light Industrial Residential ~ Vacant/Funeral Home
South: M-1 Light Industrial Industrial Vacant/Industrial
East: R-1Low Density Residential Residential ~ Residential/Agriculture
West: M-1 Light Industrial Industrial Industrial

Kyle Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 5

Comprehensive Plan Amendment
From Industrial to Residential and
Rezone from M-1 Light Industria)
To R-2 Medium Density Residential
Three parcels on South Elm Street
CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

25



VIIL Jurisdiction and Process. The jurisdiction and the review process for these

applications are as follows:

(1) Future Land Usc Map Amendment: The Grandview Comprehensive Plan
states that changes to the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) shall only be granted if,
after a recommendation is issued by the Hearing Examiner, the City Council finds
that the amendment complies with the standards set forth below in Section IX of
these recommendations. As a part of this request for a FLUM amendment, a Rezone
of the parcels is also requested.

(2) Rezone: Grandview Municipal Code 17.88 identifies the Rezone process.
A Rezone also requires a recommendation from the Grandview Hearing Examiner
and is approved by City Council if it complies with the standards set forth below in
Section X of these recommendations.

IX. Standards and Criteria for Approval of Amendments to Future Land

Use Map Designations, Chapter 17.90 of the Grandview Municipal Code

provides that recommendations shall be made to the Grandview City Council
regarding amendments to Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designations.
The following standards and criteria for consideration of amendments to the
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designations set forth in the Grandview
Comprehensive Plan Administration Element, Part IV, apply to this application for

this requested amendment in the following specific ways:

(1) The proposal is consistent with the provisions of the GMA and other
applicable state planning requirements. This proposal is consistent with the
following GMA Goals set forth in RCW 36.70A.020:

Kyle Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 6
Comprehensive Plan Amendment

From Industrial to Residential and

Rezone from M-1 Light Industrial

To R-2 Medium Density Residential

Three parcels on South Elm Street

CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

26



(a) Urban_growth: Encourage development in urban areas where
adequate public facilities and services exist or can be provided in an efficient
manner.

(b) Reduce sprawl: Reduce the inappropriate conversion of undevel-
oped land into sprawling, low-density development.

(¢} Housing: Plan for and accommodate housing affordable to all
cconomic segments of the population of this state, promote a variety of
residential densities and housing types, and encourage preservation of
existing housing stock.

(2) The proposal is consistent with and will help implement the goals,
objectives, and policies of this plan, This proposal is consistent with and would
implement the following goals, policies, and objectives of the Grandview
Comprehensive Plan:

(a) Land Use GOAL 1: To create a balanced community by control-
ling and directing growth in a manner that enhances, rather than detracts
from, community quality and values.

(b) Policy 1.1: Through land use management decisions, strive to
influence both rates and patterns of growth in order to achieve goals of the
Comprehensive Plan.

(c) Policy 1.3: Encourage urban infill where possible to avoid sprawl
and the inefficient leapfrog pattern of development.

(d) Policy 1.4: Accommodate future population growth primarily
through infilling and utilization of undeveloped subdivision lots. Conversion
of agricultural land to residential, commercial, or industrial use will be
encouraged to occur only after existing undeveloped parcels have been built
out.

(e) Land Use GOAL 7: To preserve the character, agricultural
heritage, and quality of life in Grandview and the surrounding rural areas that
are part of the community.

(f) Policy 7.2: Establish a pattern of development that supports a

sense of community.

Kyle Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 7
Comprehensive Plan Amendment

From Industrial to Residential and

Rezone from M-1 Light Industrial

To R-2 Medium Density Residential

Three parcels on South Elm Street

CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

27



(g) Policy 7.3: Encourage land use decisions that are sensitive to
Grandview’s history and culture.

(h) Housing GOAL _|: Provide safe and sanitary housing for all
persons within the community.

(i) Policy 1.1: Support the development of a housing stock that meets
the varied needs of the present community while attracting higher income
residents.

() Objective 4: Encourage and support the rehabilitation of older
homes.

(k) Objective 5: Encourage infilling in residential areas.

(1) Housing GOAL 3: Encourage a mixture of housing types and
densities throughout the UGA that are compatible with public service
availability.

(3) Required changes to the implementing regulations are identified
prior to adoption of the proposed change and are scheduled for revision so that
these implementing regulations remain consistent with the Comprehensive
Plan. This criterion is not applicable because no changes to the implementing
regulations are required prior to adoption of the proposed Comprehensive Plan
amendment in order for the implementing regulations to remain consistent with the
Comprehensive Plan.

(4) The proposal will increase the development or use potential of a site
or area without creating significant adverse impacts on existing sensitive land
uses or on other uses legally existing or permitted in the area. The proposal will
increase the development potential of the site by allowing a new duplex to be
constructed on one of the parcels. Areas to the east of these parcels either are
developed with existing residential uses or are approved for residential
development. The Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) issued for these
applications which was not appealed by any property owners or residents
determined that the proposal would not result in any probable significant adverse
environmental impacts to existing uses or to uses that are permitted in the area.

(5) The proposal is an extension of similar adjacent use or is of sufficient
size to make the proposal logical. The requested Residential Future Land Use Map

Kyle Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 8
Comprehensive Plan Amendment

From Industrial to Residential and

Rezone from M-1 Light Industrial

To R-2 Medium Density Residential

Three parcels on South Elm Street

CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

28



designation of the subject parcels would be an extension of the Residential
designation of the Comprehensive Plan to the north and to the east of these parcels.
It would also be an extension of similar residential uses that currently exist to the
east of the parcels, would convert the two existing nonconforming single-family
residences on two of the parcels into conforming uses, and would allow a duplex to
be constructed on the third lot between similar single-family residential uses on each
side.

(6) The traffic generated by the proposal will not unduly burden the
traffic circulation systems in the vicinity. The collector and arterial system
currently serves or can concurrently be extended to serve the proposal, as
needed. The applicant indicated in the City’s Transportation Checklist that only
eight average daily trips would be expected to be added to South Elm Street which
has a capacity of 8,000 average daily trips. The estimated additional eight average
daily trips would leave ample capacity for that street to continue to operate above
the requisite Level of Service (LOS) C for a two-lane street and would not unduly
burden the traffic circulation systems in the vicinity.

(7) Adequate public facilities exist or can be concurrently developed to
serve the proposal. Adequate public facilities already are serving the existing
residences on two of the parcels and also exist to serve the planned duplex use on
the third parcel.

(8) The other characteristics of the proposal are compatible with those
of other uses in the vicinity. The historic use of the site is for two residential uses.
There is a vacant lot and beyond that a funeral home north of the site and residences
east of the site. The continuation of the existing residential uses on the site has been
compatible with the characteristics of other uses in the vicinity up to now and would
continue to be compatible with the characteristics of other uses in the vicinity. The
addition of a duplex use between the existing residential uses would also be
compatible with the characteristics of the other uses in the vicinity. Any future
industrial development to the south or west of the site will be reviewed at time of
development to ensure that impacts to residential uses are minimized.

(9) The other uses in the vicinity of the proposal are such as to permit
the proposal to function preperly. The other uses in the vicinity of the parcels,

Kyle Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 9
Comprehensive Plan Amendment

From Industrial to Residential and

Rezone from M-1 Light Industrial

To R-2 Medium Density Residential

Three parcels on South Elm Street

CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

29



particularly the residential uses to the east, are such as to permit the existing
residential uses to continue to function properly as they have in the past and are also
such as to permit the duplex planned for the parcel between the existing residences
to function properly.

(10) If the proposal has significant adverse impacts beyond the City
limits, the proposal has been jointly reviewed by Yakima County. Since the
parcels are further from the boundary between the City and County than existing
residences and property approved for future residential development to the east, the
requested amendment of the Future Land Use Map designation to Residential is not
expected to have any significant adverse impacts beyond the City limits. No
comments were received from Yakima County regarding the SEPA review of this
proposal. The City’s Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) for the requested
Comprehensive Plan amendment became final without an appeal by the County or
by any other person or entity.

(11) Any other similar considerations that may be appropriate to the
particular case. The requested amendment of the Future Land Use Map designation
to Residential will help meet a need and demand for additional housing within the
City and will not deprive the City of land needed for industrial development. It was
confirmed at the hearing that more than half of the 800+ acres currently designated
as Industrial are still available for industrial development and that since RCW
36.70A.130(5)(C) mandates a Comprehensive Plan update by June 30, 2026, the
City will soon in [ess than two years begin a complete reassessment of the City’s
growth projections and land use needs for the next 20-year planning window. In the
meantime there will be ample property designated and zoned for industrial uses to
meet the demand for that type of development in the City for the next three years
until the updated Comprehensive Plan reassessment of land use needs is completed.

X. Standards and Criteria for Rezones. GMC §14.03.035 provides that a
Hearing Examiner may make land use decisions as determined by the City Council

at the request of either the Planning Commission or City Administrator. GMC

Kyle Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 10
Comprehensive Plan Amendment

From Industrial to Residential and

Rezone from M-1 Light Industrial

To R-2 Medium Density Residential

Three parcels on South Elm Street

CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

30



§14.07.030(B) requires at lcast 10 days notice of public hearings by publication,
mailing and posting. GMC §14.03.040(A)(4), GMC §14.09.030(A)(4) and GMC
§17.88.020(A)(2) provide that a recommendation is to be made to the City Council
regarding rezones in accordance with GMC Title 14. GMC §14.09.030(A)(3) and
GMC §14.09.030(A)(4) provide applicable procedures. GMC §14.01.040(H)
defines a development as any land use permit or action regulated by GMC Titles 14
through 18 including but not limited to subdivisions, binding site plans, rezones,
conditional use permits or variances. GMC §14.09.030(A)(3)(c) provides that the
Hearing Examiner is not to recommend approval of a proposed development such

as a rezone without making the following findings and conclusions:

(1) The development (proposed Rezone) is consistent with the Compre-
hensive Plan and meets the requirements and intent of the Grandview
Municipal Code. As explained above in Subsection IX(2) of these recom-
mendations, the zoning of the subject three parcels that are each slightly more than
8,000 square feet in size is recommended by the City’s Planner and Hearing
Examiner to be the R-2 Medium Density Residential District which would be
consistent with the purpose of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan “Residential”
designation. The R-2 zoning district would also be consistent with the Compre-
hensive Plan provisions quoted above in that Subsection IX(2) — namely Land Use
Goals 1 and 7; Land Use Policies 1.1, 1.3, 1.4, 7.2 and 7.3; Housing Goals 1 and 3;
Housing Policy 1.1; and Housing Objectives 4 and 5. On the other hand, a Rezone
to that district would not be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan if the
Comprehensive Plan designation is not changed from Industrial to Residential. The
requested Rezone to the R-2 zone would also meet the requirements and intent of
the City’s zoning ordinance so long as the requested Rezone satisfies all of the
criteria for the approval of a Rezone that are set forth in this Section X of these
recommendations.

Kyie Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 11
Comprehensive Plan Amendment

From Industrial to Residential and

Rezone from M-1 Light Industrial

To R-2 Medium Density Residential

Three parcels on South Elm Street

CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

31



(2) The development (proposed Rezone) makes adequate provisions for
drainage, streets and other public ways, irrigation water, domestic water
supply and sanitary wastes. Drainage, street, irrigation water, domestic water and
sanitary waste improvements, as well as other improvements, which serve the
existing residences are also adequate to serve the planned duplex.

(3) The development (proposed Rezone) adequately mitigates impacts
identified under other GMC chapters and in particular GMC Title 18. The
proposed Rezone has been determined to lack any probable significant adverse
impacts on the environment through the SEPA Determination of Non-Significance
(DNS) that was issued pursuant to GMC Title 18 on December 29, 2022, as the final
threshold determination.

(4) The development (proposed Rezone) is beneficial to the public health,
safety, morals and welfare and is in the public interest. The requested Rezone
would be beneficial to the public health, safety, morals and welfare and would be in
the public interest for several reasons. For example, the requested Rezone would
convert two existing nonconforming residences into conforming uses and would
allow a planned duplex to be constructed that would serve the housing needs of the
City; the residential uses on the subject parcels have been and will continue to be
compatible with nearby residential uses; there currently is more demand for
additional residential uses than for additional industrial uses in the City; and the
planned duplex will be required to comply with all applicable City codes and
regulations.

(5) The development (proposed Rezone) does not lower the level of
service of transportation below the minimum standards as shown within the
Comprehensive Plan. If the development results in a level of service lower than
those shown in the Comprehensive Plan, the development may be approved if
improvements or strategies to raise the level of service are made concurrent
with the development. For the purpose of this section, “concurrent with the
development” is defined as the required improvements or strategies in place at
the time of occupancy, or a financial commitment is in place to complete the
improvements or strategies within six years of approval of the development.
The estimated additional eight average daily trips that would be generated by the

Kyle Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 12
Comprehensive Plan Amendment

From Industrial to Residential and

Rezone from M-1 Light Industrial

To R-2 Medium Density Residential

Three parcels on South Elm Street

CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

32



planned duplex would leave ample capacity for the adjacent South Elm Street to
continue to operate above the requisite Level of Service (LOS) C which is
prescribed for that two-lane paved street.

(6) The area, location and features of any land proposed for dedication
are a direct result of the development proposal, are reasonably needed to
mitigate the effects of the development, and are proportional to the impacts
created by the development. Here this criterion is not applicable because there is
no land proposed or required for dedication at this time.

In addition, Section 17.88.060 of the Grandview Municipal Code provides
that the Hearing Examiner shall enter findings for a Rezone indicating whether the

following additional criteria are satisfied:

(1) Whether the proposal is in accord with the goals and policies of the
Comprehensive Plan. A Rezone of these three parcels to the R-2 Medium Density
Residential District would be in accord with the goals and policies of the 2016
Comprehensive Plan set forth above in Subsection IX(2) of these recommendations.

(2) Whether the effect of the proposal on the immediate vicinity will be
materially detrimental. The requested R-2 Medium Density Residential District
zoning for these three parcels would not be materially detrimental to the immediate
vicinity and would have merit and value for the community as a whole. The subject
parcels are near existing residences and likely future residential development to the
east. Although notice was given to nearby property owners by mailing, posting and
publication, no members of the public submitted written comments or testimony in
opposition to the requested R-2 zoning of the subject parcels.

(3) Whether there is merit and value in the proposal for the community
as a whole. There is merit and value in the recommended zoning of the subject
parcels for the community as a whole because the proposed Rezone would convert
two existing nonconforming residences into conforming uses and would allow for
construction of a duplex which would provide needed additional housing in a
location that would be compatible and would not adversely impact any critical areas.

Kyle Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 13
Comprehensive Plan Amendment

From Industrial to Residential and

Rezone from M-1 Light Industrial

To R-2 Medium Density Residential

Three parcels on South Elm Street

CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

33



(4) Whether conditions should be imposed in order to mitigate any
significant adverse impacts from the proposal. There is no need for conditions
to be imposed in order to mitigate significant adverse impacts from the
recommended zoning. The City’s SEPA Determination of Non-Significance
determined that no likely significant adverse environmental impacts would result
from the requested amendment of the Comprehensive Plan designation or from the
requested Rezone.

(5) Whether a development agreement should be entered into between
the City and the petitioner and, if so, the terms and conditions of such an
agreement. There is no need for a development agreement between the City and
the applicant as a condition for approval of the requested R-2 zoning because the
only planned additional development resulting from the requested Rezone would be
one duplex.

CONCLUSIONS

Based upon the Findings, the Hearing Examiner concludes as follows:

(1) The Hearing Examiner has authority to recommend that the Grandview
City Council approve amendments to Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map
designations and approve Rezones that meet the criteria for approval.

(2) The public hearing notice requirements of the Grandview Municipal
Code have been satisfied.

(3) SEPA environmental review completed pursuant to GMC Title 18 and
RCW 43.21C resuited in the issuance of a final Determination of Non-Significance
on December 29, 2022, which was not appealed.

(4) There is sufficient water, sewer and street capacity to serve the two
existing residences and the additional planned duplex that would be constructed if

Kyle Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 14
Comprehensive Plan Amendment

From Industrial to Residential and

Rezone from M-1 Light Industrial

To R-2 Medium Density Residential

Three parcels on South Elm Street

CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

34



the requested Residential Comprehensive Plan designation and the requested R-2
zoning are approved.

(5) The requested Comprehensive Plan amendment and the requested Rezone
would be compatible with nearby residential land uses.

(6) The public use and interest would be served by approval of the requested
Comprehensive Plan amendment and the requested Rezone.

(7) The requested Comprehensive Plan amendment and the requested Rezone
satisfy all of the standards and criteria for their approval.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Hearing Examiner recommends that the Grandview City Council
approve the requested amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map
designation of Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 230924-41409, 230924-41410 and
230924-41411 from the Industrial designation to the Residential designation and
approve the requested Rezone of the three parcels from the M-1 Light Industrial
District to the R-2 Medium Density Residential District.

DATED this 25" day of January, 2023.

Gary M. Cuillier, Hearing Examiner

Kyle Bunch/Bunch Investments LLC 15
Comprehensive Plan Amendment

From Industrial to Residential and

Rezone from M-1 Light Industrial

To R-2 Medium Density Residential

Three parcels on South Elm Street

CPA #2023-01 and RZ #2023-01

35



Yakima County GIS |

Yakima County GIS - Washington ~ —fe:ime County Assessor | ﬁuﬁrsulmeﬁcan Title
S Al

Land information Portal Yekina Conty | ! vfisamcon
e %
Assessor Planning | Real Estate FAQ | Help | Legend | Search | Tools Overview |
wilg] " Kl I - P L P 0 O ol S Search By: 0
o Lomn g gl Parcel#: |
" n:::: ]
[ [ T
Cumt - Entara complate or partial PARCEL
i | NUMBER. Parcal Numbers must be at
e | 4 least & characters. Click the Seerch
- ot button to continue.
| Search|
= ? .iL! Wl B I : plo s 1l Map8cale: 1 /nch = 400 ft.
EE 2= e o | 9
= (1 I?-w =m . f I’_l ---- Ovel'layt-‘l Aerial Photography: v ]
s — D C1EEMA Bmwm
e ORI il { contours
[y )
o 3 MapSize: Small (00x600) v |
z me
§ . Maps brought to you by:
s I A W A P
! Valley Title Guarantee
\ sz Thie insurance &
| Escrow Service
}\ | WWW.vgCo.com
simin - ™,
ht C Yll:lrnl Cou TN (509) 248-4442
Northing(f ; a T
Easting(f} | () OQ OQ o a® One inch = 400 Feet & Map Pu |
|_ Longhude(E) | Latinide(N) Click Map to: Gef Information Feel 200 400 600 -
PROPERTY PHOTOS: 1} | PROPERTY INFORMATION AS OF 2/4/2023 11:30:05 PM PRINTING
[Parcel Address: [un-assiGNED, WA B o
arcel Ownerfs):  [BUNCHINVESTMENTSLLC | “' .
'arcel Number. |Parcel Size:(8180 Square Feet —
IProperty Use: 1 Single Unit _—
TAX AND ASSESSMENT INFORMATION Re
[Tax Gode Area (TCA): At Tax Year: 12023 —
{improvement Value:  ($120500 Land Vaiue:::sswtlﬂ Brin
CurentUse Value:  |$0 CurrentUse Improvement. $0 ' M
New Construction: $0 Total Assessed Value: $159500
RESIDENTIAL INFORMATION SECTION MAPS
Quality Year Bull |Stories  [Main Sqft ]g:gf’ l,a:;rm SqFt [Bedrooms (Bﬂ‘jﬁ',‘a,“f';‘;‘.' Carae i Carport Sectic
FAIRVAVERAGE 1909 [1.00 1084 | o0 2 lozl0 [or0 l[_ LS
SALE INFORMATION Qtr SECTION MAPS
|Exclse |sale Date [sale Price [Grantor = JPortion
No Sales Information Found. | e
DISCLAIMER J W
While the Information iz intended to be accurate, any manifest arrors are unintentional and subject to comraction, Please let us know 1:?_,,,?,
|about any emors you discover and we will coect them. To contact us call either (509) 574-1100 or (800) 572-7354, orgmall us. |
GVERLAY INFORMATION
Zoning: { I i Jurisdiction: Grandviaw = gk
|Urban Growth Area: Grandview i Future Landuse Designation: (Yakima County Plan 2015) S e
[FEMA 100 Year: FEMA Map | [ FIRM Panel Number:(53077C1925D
LOCATION INFORMATION
+ Latitude:46° 15° 04.120" [+ Longitude:-119° 53" 41.232~ [Range:23 Township:09 Section:23
Narrative Description: Section 23 Township 0 R.ln_l_n 23 Quarter SE: Plat 3PM AF#8162186 Lot 1
DISCLAIMER
MAP AND PARCEL DATA ARE BELIEVED TO BE ACCURATE, BUT ACCURACY IS NOT GUARANTEED; THIS IS NOT A LEGAL DOCUMENT AND SHOULD
NOT BE SUBSTITUTED FOR A TITLE SEARCH, APPRAISAL, SURVEY, FLOODPLAIN OR ZONING VERIFICATION




First American Title
www.firstam.com

Yakima County GIS - Washington —‘X———-J"“sxg&n?s;zw
Land Information Portal ~—setere

| oy L ' Parcel #: |
D LT B r 19 | i = Yt :

*omd . & el J ! - - 4

$ gt a8 Lt e | F

£ o e ] Enter a complats or partial PARCEL
e ' "N | R HUMBER. Parcel Numbers must be at

:,.... net ; S| - g 2| - 4 " loast 8 charectors, Click the Search
.-; - = —i bution to continue.

_._-m : . : dal SQarch[
,:3 ﬁ-! "'": 3 o Ml . T i i . E_ | : ;Map&:ale:‘”nch = 400 ft.
o . i = | A i J -}

Overlays Asrial Photography: v |

0 () Critical Araas
Dgﬁmuﬁm ] Wtiitios

MapSlze:Wﬂﬁ! v]

Maps brought to you by:
Valley Title Guarantee

Title Insurance &
Escrow Sarvico

wWwWw.viQco.com
{509) 248-4442

: & Map .'ﬂu El

Easting(ft) | Northing(f) One Inch = 400 Feat
it s = W
Longitude(E) | Latitude(N) Click Map to: Get Information Feet 200 400 600

I

PROPERTY PHOTOS: 1 } PROPERTY INFORMATION AS OF 2/4/2023 11:30:05 PM PRINTING
] |Parcel Address: |UN-ASSIGNED, WA
1 Parcel Owner(s): UNCH INVESTMENTS LLC == T
Parcel Number: |Parcel Size:/6300 Square Feet

Property Use: 01 UndovelopedLand

1 Undoveloped Land

TAX AND ASSESSMENT INFORMATION
[Tax Code Area (TCA): _|440 . Tax Year2023 —
impravement Value: |so Land Valuejﬂznn

[CumrentUse Value: Iso | cumentUse Improvement:|$0

[New Construction: _ [$0 | Total Assessed Value:|$32700
RESIDENTIAL INFORMATION SECTION MAPS

I 1 T
Main SqFt [Upper SqFt -lBsml SqFt |Bodmoms ﬁ:ﬂ;ﬂ;};} :ﬁ:ﬂfbwn] Carport 3
No Residence Information Found.

SALE INFORMATION Ctr SECTION MAPS

Exclse |Sale Date [sale Price __[Grantor [Portion

No Sales Information Found.
DISCLAIMER

IWhile the information Is intended to be accurate, any manifest emors are unintentional and subject to comection. Please let us know
|about any emors you discover and we will comect them. To contact us call either (508) 574-1100 or {(800) 572-7354, or gmall ug.

OVERLAY INFORMATION

Zoning: | Jurisdiction: |Grandview

Urban Growth Area: Grandview Future Landuse Designation: |[Yakima County Plan 2013)

IFEMA 100 Year: FEMA Map | FIRM Panel Number:l&ll?ﬂ:ﬂ!m I Download

LOCATION INFORMATION

+ Latitude:46° 15 03.335" |+ Longitude:-119° 53' 41.241" {Range:23 Township:0¢ Section:23
|Narrative Description: 8sction 23 Township 09 Range 23 Quarter SE: Plat SPM AF#8162166 Lot 2

| DISCLAIMER

MAP AND PARCEL DATA ARE BELIEVED TO BE ACCURATE, BUT ACCURACY IS NOT GUARANTEED; THIS IS NOT A LEGAL DOCUMENT AND SHOULD
NOT BE SUBSTITUTED FOR A TITLE SEARCH, APPRAISAL, SURVEY, FLOODPLAIN OR ZONING VERIFICATION




Yakima County GIS [

Yak";; County GIS - Washington _Yakima Gounly Assessor | H? First American Title
Land Information Portal ~— mcomy | % o eo

FAQ | Help | Legend | Search | Tools Overview |
S By e <10
Parcel #: li S

£nler a compleis or partial PARCEL
NUMBER. Parcel Numbers must be at
least 8 characters, Click the Search
button to continue.

EPrare e IR ey
gﬁ!T R HE M
e a e | | 1J _ MapScale: 1 inch = 400 ft.

N P——

Overlays: Aerlal Pholography: v |

0 0
A W

MapSize:| Small (800x600) v |

Maps brought to you by:
Valley Title Guarantee

Title Insurance &

Escrow Service
www.vigco.com
; outy GIS (509) 248-4442
asino | Nevinolll__ i O Qe Qi @@  _ Oneinch=d00Fent 2 Map & Rep |
[ Longitude(E) | Latiude(N} Click Map to: Get Information Feet 200 400 600 S
PROPERTY PHOTOS: 1 i PROPERTY INFORMATION AS OF 2/4/2023 11:30:05 PM PRINTING
\Parcel Address: |UN-ASSIGNED, WA a -
Parcel Owner(s): 'BUNCH INVESTMENTS LLG ; Petaid
Parcel Number: 23092341411 | Parcet Size:[8388 Square Feet —
Property Use; I11 Single Unit Det
- e
I TAX AND ASSESSMENT INFORMATION Re
Tax Code Area (TCA): _|440 Tax Year(2023 | i —
Improvement Value: $131600 Land Value:|$43500 Print D
CumrentUse Value: $ | CurrentUse Improvement:[$0 | M
New Construction: [$0 Total Assessed Value:|$175100
RESIDENTIAL INFORMATION |  secTionmAPS
! Bathrooms |Garage |
Quality Yoar Built |S|ories |Main SqFt |(Upper Sl.lFl Bsmt _SqFt_ Bedrooms |l:fullf314.1 2} [hsmtfal‘vblunlcam" | S:i i
AVERAGE 1950 [t.00 [1324 0/0 3 17000 los0i0 et
SALE INFORMATION Qtr SECTION MAPS
Excise [SaleDate |sate Prica [Grantor 5 |Portion _
No Sales Information Found. e
DISCLAIMER N
Whie tha Information Is intended to be accurate, any manifest erors are uninlentionsl and subject to comection. Please lol us know o
|about any errors you discover and we will comect them. To contact us call sither (509) 574-1100 or (800) 572-7354, or amall us.
OVERLAY INFORMATION
Zoning: ___ Jurisdiction:|Grandview
Urban Growth Area: Grandview Future Landuse Designation:|(Yakima County Plan 2015) to
FEMA 100 Year: FEMA Map I FIRM Pans| Number:[ﬁ:i\‘.lﬂcwzsb
LOCATION INFORMATION
+ Latiude:46® 15° 02303 [+ Longitude:-118® 53’ 41.371" _ |panpe:23 Township:09 Section:23 :
Narrative Description: Section 23 Township 00 Range 23 Quarter SE: Plat 8PM AF#8162168 Lot 3
DISCLAIMER

MAP AND PARCEL DATA ARE BELIEVED TO BE ACCURATE, BUT ACCURACY IS NOT GUARANTEED; THIS IS NOT A LEGAL DOCUMENT AND SHOULD
NOT BE SUBSTITUTED FOR A TITLE SEARCH, APPRAISAL, SURVEY, FLOODPLAIN OR ZONING VERIFICATION




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-06

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF THE 2022 YAKIMA COUNTY
MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN

WHEREAS, all jurisdictions within Yakima County have exposure to natural
hazards that increase the risk to life, property, environment and the County and local
economy; and

WHEREAS, pro-active mitigation of known hazards before a disaster event can
reduce or eliminate long-term risk to life and property; and

WHEREAS, the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (Public Law 106-390) established
new requirements for pre and post disaster mitigation programs; and

WHEREAS, a coalition of Yakima County municipalities with like planning
objectives has been formed to pool resources and create consistent mitigation
strategies within Yakima County; and

WHEREAS, the coalition has completed a planning process that engages the
public, assesses the risk and vulnerability to the impacts of natural hazards, develops a
mitigation strategy consistent with a set of uniform goals and objectives, and creates a
plan for implementing, evaluating and revising this strategy;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, AS FOLLOWS:

1. Adopts in its entirety, the 2022 Yakima County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard
Mitigation Plan (the “Plan”) as the jurisdiction's Hazard Mitigation Plan, and resolves to
execute the actions identified in the Plan that pertain to this jurisdiction.

2. Wiill use the adopted and approved portions of the Plan to guide pre- and
post-disaster mitigation of the hazards identified.

3. Will coordinate the strategies identified in the Plan with other planning
programs and mechanisms under its jurisdictional authority.

4. Will continue its support of the Mitigation Planning Committee as
described within the Plan.

5. Will help to promote and support the mitigation successes of all
participants in this Plan.

6. Will incorporate mitigation planning as an integral component of

government and partner operations.
| 3 9



7. Will provide an update of the Plan in conjunction with the County no less
than every five (5) years.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at a special
meeting on February 14, 2023.

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY



Yakima County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan | 2022

Annex 1. City of Grandview

Grandview is located near the eastern border of Yakima County in south-central Washington
State. Grandview is equidistant, 40 miles, from the city of Yakima and the Tri-Cities of Richiand,
Pasco, and Kennewick. Grandview is located along I-82, north of the Yakima River and
surrounded by agricultural iands. The City’s neighbors include Sunnyside to the northwest and
Prosser to the southeast, both along I-82. As of the 2020 Census, the City's population was
11,075. Grandview encompasses about 6.3 square miles.

Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment

Representatives of the City of Grandview actively participated in the 2022 HMP Update as
members of the planning committee. In addition to the countywide risk assessment, the City of
Grandview identified the hazards that affect the city and revised the risk assessment to reflect
prabability, frequency, and potential impacts, as summarized in Table 1-A below. In the context
of the countywide planning area, there are no hazards that are unigue to the City of Grandview.
information on past events for each hazard can be found in Section 3 (Hazard Identification and
Risk Assessment) in the base plan.

Table 1-A. Hazard [dentification and Risk Assessment — City of Grandview

2022 Countywide 2022 City of

Risk Ranking Rfifg‘;‘r’l':i": .

Agriculture Disease Outbreak _ Medum | = Medium
Avalanche

Drought

Earthquake

Extreme Temperatures
Flood

Landslide/Mudslide/Debris
Torrent/Erosion

Public Health Emergency
Severe Weather

Severe Winter Weather
Volcanic Eruption

Natural Hazards

Wildfire High
Technological and Human-caused 2022 Countywide zcgf:ng"’tza;f
Hazards Risk Ranking Risk Ranking _

Cyber Incident ~ Medium
Dam and Levee Failure

Hazardous Materials Incident
Nuclear/Radiological Incident

Terrorism

st btk g f 11 B

Jurisdiction Annexes: City of Grandview Annexes - 2

41



Yakima County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan | 2022

Both Flood and Dam/Levee Failure risk levels are lower for Grandview than Yakima County as a
whole, given the higher elevation of the city and location outside of both the 100-year floodplain
and any mapped dam inundation areas. Risk levels for other hazards/threats are consistent with
the county rankings. Specific hazard areas and vulnerabilities are described below.

Avalanche: The City of Grandview is located outside of the identified avalanche hazard
area and is not located along a transportation corridor that may be disrupted from a
significant incident.

Drought: Drought can impact the entirety of Yakima County, including Grandview.
Irrigation water sources are split between city-owned wells and the Sunnyside Valley
Irrigation District (Sunnyside Canal). The Grandview Municipal Code includes a
provision for water conversation measures during a drought declaration, which has not
been implemented since the 1990's.

Earthquake: The seismic risk for Grandview is consistent with all of Yakima County.
There are no active fault lines within or surrounding Grandview. The city's downtown
core would be vulnerable to a significant earthquake event, given the age of most
buildings. Critical facilities in Grandview, including water and wastewater, are built to
current seismic standards.

Extreme Temperatures: Extreme temperatures can impact the entirety of Yakima
County, including Grandview. Grandview has two assisted living facilities — The
Orchards and Grandview Assisted Living — who's residents may be more vulnerabie to
extreme heat events. There are also several group homes in the city and a large elderly
population that are considered vulnerable. Extreme temperatures are expected to have
an impact on the local agricultural industry if they are long duration or particularly severe.
Flood: Grandview does not have any land located within the 100-year floodplain. The
Euclid Lift Station, part of the City’s wastewater treatment system, was at risk to flooding
during the 1996 flooding event. The facility did not ultimately flood, but flooding at the
facility could cause significant disruptions to the wastewater infrastructure. As noted
above, the Sunnyside Canal is a potential source of flooding if it were to fail or be
otherwise compromised.

Landslide: Grandview has a low susceptibility and low incidence of landslides. There is
no history of landslides or other geologic hazards in Grandview.

Severe Weather: Severe weather can impact the entirety of Yakima County, including
Grandview. There is some historic record of severe storms in the areas surrounding
Grandview (including hail and wind events), but no specific damages within city limits.
Vulnerable populations are noted above under the Extreme Temperatures hazard.
Severe Winter Weather: Severe winter weather can impact the entirety of Yakima
County, including Grandview. Heavy snow fall in 2001 caused some property damage,
including collapsed roofs. Most critical facilities in Grandview are prepared with back-up
power sources, including the fire station and police station, as well as some wells and lift
stations. Grandview has identified the need for back-up power at several additional well
sites, as well as local sheltering facilities. Vulnerable populations are noted above under
the Extreme Temperatures hazard.

Jurisdiction Annexes: City of Grandview Annexes - 3

42



Yakima County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan | 2022

e Volcanic Eruption: Volcanic hazards, specifically ash fall, can impact the entirety of
Yakima County, including Grandview. The city is not located within the Mt, Adams
volcano hazard zone.

¢ Wildfire: Grandview does not have a higher wildfire hazard potential than other Yakima
County communities. Large fires have burned in the Rattlesnake Hills north of the city,
including the 2016 Range 12 fire. Due to its location on I-82, Grandview experiences
limited impacts from transportation disruptions from wildfires. Grandview owns a
wastewater facility site, about 1,000 acres of land, just south of the city. The facility is
mostly surrounded by wildland, including sagebrush and grasses. In July 2022, about
500 acres of the property burned after a wildland fire jumped over the Yakima River. At
the time of plan development, the City estimated approximately $1 million in insurance
claims. The Grandview Fire Department is still assessing potential mitigation actions, but
there is a need to increased preparedness planning to protect the site, increase fire
breaks, and potentially secure specialized firefighting resources to mitigate wildfire
damages in the future.

» Dam/Levee Failure: Grandview is not located directly within the inundation area of any
dams.

* Hazardous Materials: Grandview is at risk from hazardous materials traveling on 1-82
and on the Burlington Northern Railroad, both of which pass through the city. Grandview
experienced a fire in the early 2000’s at the Wilbur-Ellis Site that closed |-82 for
approximately 24 hours and required nearby evacuations. The Wilbur-Ellis site is one of
two large suppliers of agricultural chemicals and fertilizers. Grandview is also home to
several cold storage warehouses that are known to store anhydrous ammonia.
Grandview experiences occasional hazardous materials releases from fixed facilities as
well as from agricultural transportation along local roadways.

Jurisdiction Annexes: City of Grandview Annexes - 4

43



Yakima County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan | 2022

Capability Assessment
Capabilities are the programs and policies currently in use that could be used to implement the

hazard mitigation strategy. Local capabilities may include regulatory tools such as plans and
ordinances, administrative and technical expertise, or fiscal resources.

Regulatory Capabililies

Grandview last updated its Comprehensive Plan in 2016, and the municipal code was last
updated and adopted in November 2021. Table 1-B lists key indicators of legal and regulatory
capability to implement mitigation projects that are specific to the City of Grandview.

Table 1-B. City of Grandview Legal and Regutatory Capability Assessment
Local County Other
Authority | Run | Authority | SOMments

' Codes and Ordinances

Title 15 of the Grandview Municipal
Code establishes building and
Building Code Yes construction codes and reguiations.
Grandview has adopted the 2015
International Building Code. -
Title 17 of the Grandview Municipal
Zoning Yes Code establishes the local zoning

| ordinance. ) |
{ Title 18 of the Grandview Municipal
Code adopts the Yakima County '
Critical Areas Ordinance, which
establishes standards for Frequently
Flooded Areas and Geologically
Hazardous Areas. .

Title 16 of the Grandview Municipal
Subdivisions Yes Code establishes the local subdivision
ordinance. _ _
Stormwater management and
standards are addressed within Title
18 as part of the Critical Areas
Ordinance. L
The Washington State Growth i
Management Act (RCW Chapter

Yes 36.70A) directs growth management
and comprehensive planning for

| Washington cities and counties.
Some public safety and health
ordinances are included in Title 8 of
Yes the Grandview Municipal Code. Title 2
establishes police and fire department
authorities. e car e
Grandview adopted a Critical Areas
Environmental Ordinance which includes procedures
Protection UCE for protecting wetlands, fish and wildlife |
habitat conservation areas, areas

Indicator

Hazard-specific Yes

Stormwater

Management Yes

Growth
Management

Public Health
and Safety

Jurisdiction Annexes: City of Grandview Annexes - 6

44



Yakima County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan | 2022

Table 1-B. City of Grandview Legal and Regulatory Capability Assessment

Local
Authority

County

Indicator Run

Other
Authority

Comments

ning Documents

subject to certain hazards, and other
environmentally sensitive lands.

Grandview last updated its

Comprehensive Yes Comprehensive Plan in 2016,
. Grandview is in the process of
E'r‘l(;ltl;gggentaf Yes updating the Water and Sewer
Comprehensive Plan.
The Yakima Valley Conference of
Governments manages the Yakima
Transportation Yes Valley Metropolitan and Regional

Response/Recovery Planning

Transportation Plan, last updated in
2020.

Comprehensive The City of Grandview is a member of |
Emergency the Yakima Valley Emergency
Management Yes Management and Yakima County
Plan {CEMP) Emergency Services Council.
Grandview is a party to the 2019
CEMP. .
Community Grandview is represented within the :
Wildfire Yakima Valley Fire Adapted !
Protection Plan Yes Communities Coalition, which was
CWPP) revising the CWPP at the time of HMP
( | development (2022). o
L The City of Grandview last updated its
832?2;::50;1@ Yes COOP more than five years ago and
(COOP) does not have a Continuity of

Government Plan.

Jurisdiction Annexes: City of Grandview

Annexes - 6

45



Yakima County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan | 2022

Administrative and Technical Capabilitios

Grandview has a full-time City Administrator who manages the Public Works Department. The
Grandview Police Department and Grandview Fire Department co-lead emergency operations
for the city. Outside of these three positions, hazard mitigation administrative and technical

capabilities are supported by contracted services as well as the Yakima Vailey Council of
Governments and Yakima County departments.

Table 1-C. City of Grandview Administrative and Technical Capability Assessment

Indicator Available | Comments _ |
Planners or engineers with . .
knowledge of land development Yes Yakima Valley Council of Governments:

and land management Contracted_ Services

Engineers or professionals trained I

in building or infrastructure Yes Contracted Services |
construction = |
Planners or engineers with an .
understanding %f natural hazards M Selich e et rmha
Surveyors Yes Contracted Services s
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS Yes Yakima County GIS _ |
Shared responsibility of the Fire Chief and |
Emergency manager Yes Police Chief, supported through Yakima
Valley Emergency Management o
Floodplain manager No L _ ]
: Yakima Valley Council of Governments:
Grant writers Yes Contracted Services -
Other

National Flood Insurance Program

The City of Grandview participates in the Nationa! Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) (CID
#530218) and the last FIRM map for the area was issued on 11/18/2009 (EEMA, 2022). The
City of Grandview does not currently participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)
program. Table 1-D describes fioodplain management capabilities and NFIP program
compliance for Grandview.

Table 1-D. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance and Capabilities

What department is responsible for floodplain management in your Public Works
jurisdiction? Department
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction? No

Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations No

that need to be addressed? If so, please state what they are.

Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within Yes

your jurisdiction? (If no, please state why)

Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training

to support its floodplain management program? If so, what type of No
assistance/training is needed?

Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System No

(CRS)? If s0, is your jurisdiction seeking to improve its CRS

Jurisdiction Annexes: City of Grandview Annexes -7

46



Yakima County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan | 2022

Table 1-D. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance and Capabilities

Classification? If not, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS
program?

Jurisdiction Annexes: City of Grandview Annexes - 8

47



6 - saxauuy MBIAPUELD) JO AN ‘seXauuy uondipsune
- - T— .
SaYIEN “
UMO] ‘YELBH JO UMO] ‘BUIINBA JO A31D ‘den wwn_.“_mw_uww& ‘suojjeltado juswuisaof pue _
o | i landum GRS | mentie TSI |
. : - A : Auo ‘ABojouyas) 19049
2aXOW 0 A0 '1aBuein J0 Al ‘MaeIApuBRID) uoReULO| SuOISTULI 12GAD 1O} sasialaxa
J0 Aug 'spouisiq aui4 Auno) ewne Aiunon BweAs pue Bulure); jonpuod
‘welwebeuey Aousbiewg Asjep suiNe A :
AQuno) eupep ‘ssyoeN jo £Bo
. : ] o
UmoL LeueH jo c“soh SLIEA JO @0 deg :oa_mﬁww& "SaiqeiaunA
..m_uoﬁ_._ &M ﬁwcm”_cwmﬂwh ,_w “two Moww__._. BUIDEA J0 | SeBw pue syse] uolEIPaW soelY/iBaIy ) v
HOIH : 20 4D opi i S0 A9 :‘ 198 30 A9 Ao ‘ABojouyday aznuoud o} JusLussassy 18949 |
aaxoi J0 AuD Jebuess) jo Ao ‘mainpuelo) uoRELIO| Yot Anoag e s1e/dwod |
§0 AuQ 'sjousig elig Aunog BuapeA Aunos ewieA = {
‘Juowabeuep Aousbiawg AsjjeA ewne : _
‘sueld ansuayasdwios pue
SBYOBN Jo UMOL |
‘ ' : [eryo Bup|ing $9p0OO [edidiunwi U paulino | uoRdru3 JuBdloA
HYBUBH jO c.__so._. BUIbIEA JO b_o deg uown pue sjueuedag se JusldojeAsp aumny | UCIS0JT/BPISPUET]
31VYIAON .,6 Aig cm_cw&o._._v,o Ao cowm_._.. 3 Ao Bujuue)q pue Bugsixa o} ysuU sonpal axenbyues €
mv_m\mcc_._m 10 kg gm_mw §0 Ao ‘eexop uMo 1/AUD 0) seae piezey .o_mo_owm syaueEAY
jo Ay seburlg jo Aug ‘meinpuelg 0 Auo . ul Juswdojesp abeuepy
sojpousby Bupuoddng uopteziuefip #
Apoug pue suondipsunp Bupedioiuey Buneulpioon swie) uopay P4EZEH uonoy

ABaeng uonebim piezeH zzoz maiapuels jo Ao “3-| sjqe)

‘ue|d eseq ay) 0} J Xjpuaddy Se papnjoul st ABsjeng uoneBmy

piezeH zzog Sje|dwod ay) "S-} ojqel ul pajsi SUoloe auy) uo Asusbe Jeuped e 1o Aoushe Bugeulpioos ay) Jayye se papnjoul
S{ matapuelg) “AGsiess uonebyiw spmAlunos ayl jo ped e se suonoe uoneBqiw paziuoud pue payRuSpI MIIAPUEIS) JO AU oy
ABajesig uoneBiy

2202 | ueld uoneByIN piezeH [euonapsUNr-pINp AJunog ewnje

43




@)
4

0} - sexauuy MBIAPUEID 0 AYD) (SexXauUY UORIPSLIN

Abajeng uonebmy piezeH zzoz meiapuelg J0 A9 3-1 2jqe]

Runog ewpe) ‘seysep Jjo ‘sule)sis Jojem pue ‘sasibo| 1B
UMO| ‘YeueH Jo Uma] ‘BeweA jo An 'des uswabeuepy [e211L9 ‘seys 9180 SSew YO
21VHIAON uojun jo Ao ‘ysiueddo] jo Auo ‘uojer] fousbiowg | ‘susyays Aouebiowsa ‘suonels JSWIA DIOADS 61
10 Ao ‘spisfuung Jo Ay ‘Uejes 1o Ao J090O |  aJy Buipnjoul ‘saijice) (BN JSESM 210M0S
‘8aX0O Jo AuD Jebueig jo Al ‘Melapueln) Asjjep ewnie | o) siojesaush samod dn-yoeq exenbyyes
10 AuD ‘spousig 214 funon eune aseyoind o) Buipuny einoeg
SBYoeN Jo c..sa 1 ‘yeuey jo c?m ] ‘euwe A -spoelosd aznuoud
10 M«_m_ a.,m_.wuwﬂ_u_cw M_Q.w Mw__._.__wmn_o.w juswabeuspy pue 'sjesse uoyepodsues) uuog
] 30 AU .a: 10 9Pt . Si fousBlaug pue Auosew paalojuiaiun IBJUIA BIBADS
HOIH | AU ‘uejeg jo AiD ‘sexoi o Au Jebueln . gl
10 A0 ‘MOIADUBID 0 A0 ‘SouIsIq) iig 10820 Butpnour ‘aunponiseyur FEIN-EY TR
b_.__._oo. ewne A ‘seojeg yuus &wmm.o_ Em.w Aellep e puE SalyjIoe] f2onud axenbupey
Jl1aNd AJUNoD BWNEA ‘SIS AUNOD BUIeA ¥t Jo Lojsaul ue dojeasq
SSYYEN JO UMO) .
. . ) wewsbeuepy | -Aunoo ey} ssosoE SSBUAIEME
HELEH Jo &so._. BUIBIEA JO b_o deg o AousBieug ysu syenbuyles asesioul
HOMH o A9 ‘ysiueddo) o Ao Lot 4o Ao 10 250 o} wesBosd jnosyeys 18e10 aenbypes | pi
mv_w\m_.__.sw 10 kg cm_wm 10 A ‘eexo Aojlen euje A ay} ul uonediored anupuon
J0 A0 sebueig) Jo A ‘meIApURID Jo A1
sejousby Bupioddng uopeziuebin #
Ruoud pue suopoipsuny Bugednied Bupeuipioos Siuey uogoy PIEZBH | yonoy

2Z0Z | ueld uoeBIN pIeZeY |RUCHOIPSUNP-INW A3UNCD BUWINEA




L1 - saxeuuy

MBIADURID) JO AID) (SexauUy uonatpsune

ABajens uonebnIy pi1ezeH ZgoZ MaIAPURID Jo A1) *3-| ajqeg

Aunos eLIDE A
'SOUIEN JO UMO] ‘UBMEH JO UMO] ‘BulyeA juswsbeuey
2LVHIAON Jo Ao ‘desy uotun) jo AuD ‘ysiuaddo] AouaBlowg ‘ueld uonnquisig co_uM“..___.m__ﬁM.._MM““M\.w 2z
10 A5 ‘uojal) jo Ayo 'spisAUURS jo 10820 | Jolepn AousbBiswg ue dojeasQ -
A0 'yejag jo Ao ‘sexop yo Ay ‘Jeburig AsjieA eupiep L
J0 Ao ‘mainpuel9 jo AND ‘spoulsiq uonebus
: ‘shep Ayjenb
AUNoD BUIEA ‘SSYIBN JO UMO| S ;i s
‘(BLIEH JO UMO. ‘BUIYEA J0 A7) ‘des uoi wewesbeuey | e jood pue Jeyleam swenxa |  uondnig JlueojoA
HOIH 10 A1 ‘ysiuaddoy) 4o Ay ‘UoteL] Jo Auo fousbiawg | Buunp spuspiss) syqelisuna 1oy SIUPUAA 'z
.mv_mxc_._:m. 10 Aoy ,cm_w.m 10 Auny ¢ mmxo._z y 10 8910 Jaysuys Em..oaaEE apiacid o) saineradway
S i : : SlEA BUDIBA | SBQHIOR) Jl[Qna LILUM sis)loys awRLnx3
10 A3 “sebueig Jo Mg ‘mainpueip jo Ko Iie uesya pue Buijooo ysiqesg
"SaiouabJould esy
alqnd J2y3o 1o ‘seinjeiadils)
. swanxs ‘(Ayenb
. Aunon mE_v_m.> SaUIEN 11e/B5oWs) SaupYIM Buipnou! uoiidrug SIUEdOA
10 UMD ‘UBLIBH JO UMO| ‘BUINEA 10 swebeuey 'syoedu yyesy oignd SILPIAA
HOIM Ao ‘deg uotun Jo Auo ‘ysiuaddo] jo Auo AousBrawg o1 pesy e e sp h.mNmr_ sepusbiews oz
‘ugal) jo Ao ‘spisAuung jo A1 ‘'yejes 00U | o) 5 empIsle souBAPE pUE WiesH dllqnd
10 Aliny ‘saxop 10 AID) ‘1ebueisy 10 Aun fajjep eupie A su n.E ae sAe10sd jeuosIed saimeredwa}
MSIADUBIO) JO A)tD OLISI YHBoH BuwDie A anssi o} suped AUNWILIOD alanx3
pue 'sapusbe saolnes [B100S
‘Yj[es\y {eo0] Uum 81eulpioo)
sojouafiy Hupioddng uoneziueflio #
Rpopd pue suopoipsunr Bupediopied | Bupeuipioog swis togov PIEZ8H | uogoy

44114

ueld uoneBHIN piezeH [euoRdIpSUNP-RINK AUROD BWIEA

50



2L - soxauuy

MBIAPURIS) JO A7) 'SeXauUy UonIIpSHNp

ABajeng uonebniw prezey zgoz malapues jo K19 -3-1 3jqel

AUNOD BUIME A "SBUIEN JO UMO| ELIEA ‘sue|d Juslisbeuepy
0 Auo 'desy uoiun jo Ay “ysiuaddo) PuIsig suoZ | prezeH pool4 saisuaysiduios
HOIH 10 Ap0 ‘ugal] jo Ao ‘spisAuung jo jozuoy pool4 Ul psijuspl se seale piezey Buipooly or
Ao ‘yepes Jo Auo ‘aaxop 10 Al ebueln Aunod euwnye | pooy Woip seimonis Bugsixe
jo A0 ‘uoisinig Buiuue|y Ajunos ewne SAOWRL JO ‘s1ed0[a) ‘alinboy
“usLWs|duw| pue syuswalinbs)
wesbord Bunesw uoneoydde
dojsaaq "uoliebiw piezey
Alunog ewnje A ‘SaYIBN JO UMO| 'BWINEA 4O -a1d pue sseuaseme oyqnd u)
A0 ‘deg) uown jo Au) ‘ysjuaddo] jo Aun S[eIoWO | sAloe-oid e jey) suonapsun| Bul
HOIH | “liojer jo Ao ‘spisAuung jo AuD ‘yees | Uieidpooyd 2007 spiemal yaym (SHO) il B
j0 Ay Jebuels jo Aun 'meiapueig) jo Aio waysAg Buney Ayunwuios
VN4 a3 Joj Buner ssej)
Buusmol 10 ‘Yum soueduios
Buuieuiew ‘Buusius sapisuon)
AJUNOD BWDEA JoUISIg ‘sJaumo Auadoid
8uo0Z [ouo) poo|d Aiuno) ewneA ‘seyoseN 0] Sjyejiear saueInsul
HOIH JO UMO) ‘UBLBH JO UMO] ‘BlUNEA O SIBISWO pooy ayeLu o) suoneinbal Buipool4 ge
A9 ‘deg uown jo AnD ‘ysiweddo] jo Ay | urejdpoory jeoon (didN) weiboud sauesnsu ’
‘uojel Jo AuD ‘spisAuung 4o AuD ‘yees PoOld [eUCliEN JuaLnNd
40 A0 “sobuess) 10 AND ‘mairpuelg) 10 A Yum souedwos ey
jounos
(sweitboxd
JuswdosAa pue LOIBAISSUOD S0.N0SSY .
uojbuyseps 'Auncy BlBeA 'SaydenN Jo 6 m_.ocﬂ_._w:_ .womam S1qisus;8p
UMOJ, “YBLIBH O UMD BIUNEA 40 AU ‘dED) wawebeuep BSIMBIId X3) slauMOsLIoY
‘ : Fauablewg 1o} sainsesw ssaupasedald SUILDPEM
HOIH uoluny jo ApQ ‘Ysiueddo Jo Ayg ‘uojell 14
p ) 103080 | reuosiad o) payabie; swelboud Buipcol4
10 A3 "spishuuns jo A9 ‘yeres 4o Ako Aallen ewnie uonebiw Bunsixe noge
‘@aX0 10 AU Jsbuesg) Jo AU ‘MaIApURIS) IIEA BUEA _._m_.w n_:.._mwu u o_.gﬂ.u_._ ! mm
10 A0 ‘spouisia eut4 Aunog ewnyea ! i
JouISIQ |0AUOD POO)4 AUNOS BUINEA ssoualeme ojqnd e dojaaeQ
sappueby Bupnoddng uopeziuebio it
fpoud pue suofjoipsun, Bupedjojued Sugeuipioon Stue) uogoy PieZEH uonoy

2eoe

uelq uonebniiy pJezeH jeuondtpsunp-pnW Aunos ewjes

1

LO



£ - soXauuy

MBIIAPURID) J0 AIID (Sexauuy uonoIpsunp

Aunod ewpe A ‘SSUJEN JO UMO] .
‘yeLeH \mp_o umoj _amu.h_v_m> wm_ Ayn ‘'deg :o»g:D 5 Buunp m%_w_wﬂ%mmh._ m MHNMH
0 A ‘ysjueddoy jo Au) 'uolsi] jo AuD uuueld . nd dotors _
ALVHIAON ‘'spisAuung jo Auo ‘yeles jo A ‘aaxon Runon ewpe A memm_w____.w%mﬂum%w&_%_ a_._.__.,_. SIPIM &
30 Apg “ssbueig jo ALD ‘mainpuels Jo Auo pue ‘Ainusp! ‘yoreesey]
‘wewdojaasg Agunwion ewe s 1o Ao G ;
‘saseyaind
wawdinbs pue ‘sainseay
MW:HM%MM“NM“_ aAl)os)04d 10) Buuuejd
J1VH3dOoN majnpuels jo AuD EmE«._m.n_mm ‘syea.q aiy Buipnjou sy alpim | ob
e S9NP3J 0} SBLY|IDEY JOTEMOISEM
14 MSIAPUEID 5,A10 9y} punoIe SaInsesw
uonoaoid asypim Jualaiduw)
SPE0Y AJUNOY BUDEA
‘Wawabeuey AousBiawz AsjfeA BlUEA ]
‘se0IM8S DIigNd AJUN0D BLINEA ‘SAUOEN pusigauoz | o uoowﬁwmr_ﬂmuhm i o
HOIH ittt ‘YeueH JO UMD ‘BUIEA JO loquo) poold LO SOMUS Yum uonesadood Buipoo|4 ¥
Ao ‘deg) uoiun jo AuQ ‘ysiuaddo) jo A9 | Auno) ewnea onsiunpoddo SoueApY
‘uojail Jo Au9 ‘spisAuung jo Ao ‘yejes i
§0 A0 '1eBuerg Jo A9 ‘matnpuels) Jo Ao
so)ousBy Bupuoddng uopezjuebio #
Apsoud pue suonipsune Bupediopreg | Bupeujpuoos LA/ PIEZEH | uopoy

ABajeng uonebimw piezeH zzozZ MoIApuels) Jo A '3-1 3jqe)

44114

ueld uoneBNIN pIezel (BUORIPSUNC-RIN AIUNOD B EA

52



bl - sexauuy

MBIAPUELS) JO A)ID) Sexauuy uonoipsunpe

Aluno) ewne A ‘sayoeN jo
UMO] ‘UBlEH JO UMO] ‘BUINEA JO A7) ‘den

"$92IN0S8J
d00J Ulyim suoesepisuod
leqAa pue || sjeiba

uolun o Apo ‘ysiuaddo) jo Ay ‘uoeil wawebeuep )
.. 10 A0 ‘spishuung jo A0 ‘yeleg Jo AuD fousBiaws msmmm,ﬂ_ﬂw_: tuuerd (d00O) .
‘ : . luuelq suogessdp jo prezeH-lnN | /9
saxoW Jo A1 uebuelg jo A ‘maiapuele) 10 300 AInuRUoS 818810 0} siepinald
jo Ao 'spouisia a4 AjunoD ewieA AslieA eue A T Sa0IES ASUSBISWS pUB
‘JouISIQ SUOZ [0AjU0D POOI4 AUNOD BUINEA 5 :
11 BUIEA J0 AND ‘1| AUNOD BWINEA suopalpsunt loj sauersisse
' : ’ |ea1uyss) pue Buiuies) splaoid
Aunog eweA ‘SSUdeN o "S|O0YJS pUB '$28sauisng
UMO_ ‘yelreH Jo umo) ‘euyea Jo Ao ‘deg e ‘s1aumo Apadosd sjeaud
uoiun jo AuD ‘ysiuaddoy jo Ao ‘uojet] } fousBo Es_ ‘sarousbe oygnd ‘sjuspisal )
HOIH 10 A3 ‘spishuung jo Au9 'yejes jo Ao 10 62 w 3su au Buronpas pue sprezey pezeH-InW | &9
‘@aX0W 40 A9 Jebueig) jo Aun) ‘MeIApURIE) ASUBA il cw Bunebpw e pauwie sweiboid
10 A "seaeg Jlignd Aluno Bwie A IIEA BUIXEA uoneonpa usws|du
JoL}sIg sU0Z [0QUDD) POO[d AJUNOD BLUINE A pue 'saueyue ‘dojsasg
IS 158104 SN “WNA ucBulyses
‘10Q vojbutysep ‘Aunod ewne
‘SBYIEBN JO UMO] ‘YBLBH JO UMO] ‘BUIEA
10 Auo “deg uolun Jo Ao ‘ysiuaddo) m_.__._mmwmm M«_EEP\.W
10 Ao ‘'uojal] jo A9 ‘spisAuuns Jo UBId U o_n_nm_.@w “abeubis pue BT
HOIH AD 'yepes Jo AN ‘asxop Jo Aun Jebueln Id .Mo } : d sejnos ssalbs/ssaooe ancsdw SPIM 8s
10 K10 ‘MeIApURIS 10 AU ‘SUOISING SPeoy Ao
Aunog ewpje,, ' uoising sid pue Buiping ’ 9
Auno) ewnjea ‘Juswebeuep AousBiawg
AojieA Buie A ‘SPLISIQ 8.4 AUNoD Bumjes
sejoueby Buppoddng uopenuebio #
Auoud pue suopojpsunp Bupedopsed | Bugeupiood swen vopay PIEZ8H | ooy

ABajeng uonebniy piezey Zgoz maapuels jo Ao ‘3-| djgel

2202 | ueld uoneByiiy pJezeH feuondipsunp-HnK Aunoo ewipes

53



gl - saxauuy

MBIAPUBID) JO AT [S8XaUUY UOIIpSLINg

ABareng uonebun piezey gzoz meiapueis jo A3 -3- sjge]

Aunog euyeA ‘SeyoeN Jo umo] ‘yeueH
joumo] ‘euwneA o A0 ‘des uolun wowsbeuepy 'suetd (©09)
HOIH 10 Au0 ‘ysiuaddoy Jo Aus uoreLl 10 Auo AsusBiawg USWWISADL) JO ALNUYUOY) PIEZEH-GINA g0
‘apisAuUNg Jo A0 “Yeles Jo Aun ‘sox o.E 10 WO Buidojansp so/pue Sugepdn :
10 AuD “1eBueIS) 10 Ay * Bm_%_._m..._ 9 40 Ay Aajlep ewne A ur suopolpsunf poddng
seojouaby Buppuoddng uopezjuebip
ou
Aoud pue suogaipsunp Bugediomey Bupeuipoos Suiej) uogay PJezeH :o_uuw

2Z0Z | ueld uonebpiy piezeH jeuolaPsUNr-N AJUNoD ewie

<
LO



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-03

AN ORDINANCE OF CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON GRANTING TO ZIPLY
FIBER PACIFIC, LLC, (ZFP), A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, THE
NONEXCLUSIVE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE, AUTHORITY AND FRANCHISE TO LOCATE,
CONSTRUCT, INSTALL, OWN, MAINTAIN, REPAIR, REPLACE, EXTEND,
OPERATE AND USE FACILITIES IN, UPON, OVER, UNDER, ALONG, AND ACROSS
THE FRANCHISE AREA FOR PURPOSES OF THE TRANSMISSION,
DISTRIBUTION AND SALE OF TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND
COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

WHEREAS, Ziply Fiber Pacific, LLC, (hereinafter “ZFP”), a Delaware limited liability
company, has filed with the City of Grandview, State of Washington (the "City") a written
application for a Franchise to locate, construct, operate, maintain a fiber optic communication
system and personal wireless services facility and use such works, underground and overhead
cables, equipment, pedestals, antenna and appurtenances over, under, along and acress all of
City's rights of way and public property in the City for the purposes of the transmission,
distribution and sale of wireline and wireless telecommunications and communications services;

WHEREAS, the City Council has found it desirable for the welfare of the City and its
residents that such non-exclusive franchise be granted to the Franchisee.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Grandview, Washington does hereby ordain as follows:
SECTION 1.0 DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Franchise the following terms, phrases, words and their
derivations shall have the meaning given in this Section. When not inconsistent with the context,
words used in the present tense include the future, words in the plural include the singular, and
words in the singular include the plural. Words not defined shall be given their common and
ordinary meaning.

1.1 Franchisee. “Franchisee” means Ziply Fiber Pacific, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, and its lawful successors, transferee and assignee thereof,

1.2 City. “City” means City of Grandview, a municipal corporation of the State of
Washington, and its respective successors and assigns.

1.3 Days. “Days” means business days.

1.4  Effective Date. “Effective Date” means the date of legal publication of this Ordinance,
upon which the rights, duties and obligations of this Franchise shall come into effect, and the
date from which the time requirement for any notice, extension and/or renewal shall be
measured.

1.5 Facilities. “Facilities” means, collectively, any and all transmission and distribution
systems and appurtenances owned by the Franchisee, now and in the future in the Franchise
Area, including but not limited to, poles, wires, pipes, conduits and other appliances and
conductors for such Telecommunications system.

1.6  Franchise. “Franchise” means the grant by the City of rights, privileges and authority

embodied in this Ordinance.
Page 10f 10 5 5



1.7  Franchise Area. “Franchise Area” means the surface and space above and below all
rights-of-way for:

(i) public roads, streets, avenues, alleys, bridges, tunnels, easements, and highways of the
City, as now laid out, platted, dedicated, acquired or improved within the present
corporate limits of the City;

(ii) public roads, streets, avenues, alleys, bridges, tunnels, easements, and highways that
may hereafter be laid out, platted, dedicated, acquired or improved within the present
corporate limits of the City and as such limits may be extended by annexation or
otherwise during the term of this Franchise;

(iii) all City-owned utility easements dedicated for the placement and location of various
utilities, provided such easements would permit the Franchisee to fully exercise the
rights granted under this Franchise within the area covered by the easement; and

(iv) any other specifically designated City-owned property.

1.8 Maintenance, maintaining, or maintain. The meaning of the terms “Maintenance,
maintaining, or maintain” includes, without limit, repairing, replacing, upgrading, examining,
testing, inspecting, and removing the Franchisee Facilities, vegetation management, digging and
excavating, and restoration of affected right-of-way surfaces.

1.9  Parties. “Parties” means City and the Franchisee collectively.

1.10 Party. “Party” means either City or the Franchisee individually.

111 Person. “Person” means a business entity or natural person.

1.12 Public Project. “Public Project” means any City or other government-funded capital
improvement project on the Rights-of-way or City property within the Franchise Area.

1.13 Right-of-way. “Right-of-way” means the surface of and the space along, above, and
below any street, road, highway, freeway, lane, sidewalk, alley, utility easement and/or right-of-
way now or hereafter held or administered by the City.

1.14 State. “State” means the State of Washington.

SECTION 2.0 GRANT OF FRANCHISE

City hereby grants to the Franchisee the right, power, privilege and authority to enter
upon all roads, rights of way, streets, alleys, highways, public places or structures, lying within
the Franchise Area to locate, construct, operate and maintain its Facilities for the maintenance
and operation of a telecommunications and communications system within the Franchise Area.
2.1 Effective Date

This Ordinance is effective as of the date of approval, passage and publication as required
by law.

2.2 Term

The rights, privileges and Franchise hereby granted to the Franchisee will extend for a
term of 25 years from the Effective Date, and shall continue year-to-year thereafter, until it is
otherwise renewed for another 25-year term, or terminated by either Party, with not less than
180 days prior written notice to the other Party.

2.3 Non-Exclusive Franchise

This Franchise is not an exclusive Franchise. This Franchise shall not prohibit the City

from granting other franchises within the Franchise Area.

Page2of 10 5 6



2.4 Assignment Of Franchise
The Franchisee shall have the right to assign its rights, benefits and privileges under this
Franchise. Any assignee shall, within thirty (30) days of the date of any assignment, file written
notice of the assignment with the City together with its written acceptance of all terms and
conditions of this Franchise. As permitted by law and Commission regulation, the Franchisee
shall have the right, without notice to or consent of the City, to mortgage or hypothecate its
rights, benefits and privileges in and under this Franchise as security for indebtedness.

2.5 Franchise Taxes, Fees and Costs

The Franchisee shall pay all permitting, license fees, costs and/or utility privilege taxes
which it might be required to pay in connection with the issuance, maintenance, existence,
continuation, or use of this Franchise, to the extent permitted by State law or the City ordinance
now in effect or enacted during the term of this Franchise. The City reserves the right to
designate the time and manner of payment of such fees, costs or taxes owed by the Franchisee in
connection with this Franchise. To the extent that any Franchise fees, taxes or other costs are
imposed on the Franchisee, as specifically provided by RCW 35.21.860, the city may not impose a
franchise fee or any other fee or charge of whatever nature or description upon revenues derived
by ZFP for use of the right-of-way.

SECTION 3.0 FRANCHISEE’S OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

3.1 Compliance with Laws, Regulations, Codes and Standards

In carrying out any authorized activities under the privileges granted by this Franchise,
the Franchisee shall meet accepted industry standards and codes and shall comply with all
applicable laws, regulations and ordinances of any governmental entity with jurisdiction over the
Franchisee’s Facilities in the Franchise Area. This includes all applicable, laws, regulations and
ordinances existing as of the Effective Date or may be subsequently enacted by any governmental
entity with jurisdiction over the Franchisee’s operations within the Franchise Area. The City shall
have the right to make and enforce reasonable rules and regulations pertaining to the conduct of
the Franchisee's operations within the Franchise Area. Prior to the adoption of any new rule,
procedure or policy, the Franchisee shall be provided a written draft document for comment with
a response period of not less than thirty days.
3.2 Facility Location and Non-Interference

The Franchisee shall have the discretion to determine the placement of its Facilities as may

be necessary to provide safe and reliable telecommunications service within the Franchise Area,
subject to the following non-interference requirements. All construction, installation, repair or
relocation of the Franchisee’s Facilities performed by the Franchisee in the Franchise Area will be
done in such a manner as not to interfere with the construction and maintenance of other
utilities, drains, drainage and irrigation ditches and structures, and City-owned property within
the Franchise Area.
3.3 Facility Location Information

The Franchisee shall provide the City, upon the City's reasonable request, Facility location
information in electronic or hard copy showing the location of its Facilities at specific locations
within the Franchised Area, to the extent such information is reasonably available. The
Franchisee does not warrant the accuracy of any such Facility location information provided and,

Page 3 of 10 5 ;



to the extent the location of Facilities is shown, such Facilities may be shown in their
approximate location. With respect to any excavations within the Franchise Area undertaken by
or on behalf of the Franchisee or the City, nothing stated in this Franchise is intended (nor shall
be construed) to relieve either party of their respective obligations arising under the State one-
call law with respect to determining the location of existing underground utility facilities in the
vicinity of such excavations prior to commencing work.
3.4 Vegetation Management

The right of the Franchisee to maintain its Facilities shall include the right, as exercised in
the Franchisee’s professional discretion, to utilize an integrated vegetation management program
to minimize the likelihood that encroaching (either above or below the ground) vegetation can
interfere with or limit access to the Franchisee’s Facilities or pose a threat to public safety and
welfare. The Franchisee or its agents may accordingly remove or limit the growth of vegetation
which encroaches upon its Telecommunications transmission and distribution corridors within
the Franchise Area.
3.5 Right Of Excavation

For the purpose of implementing the privileges granted under this Franchise, and after
any required notification is made to the City, the Franchisee is authorized to make any necessary
excavations in, under and across the streets, alleys, roads, rights of way and public grounds
within the Franchise Area. Such excavation shall be carried out with reasonable dispatch and
with as little interference with or inconvenience to the public as may be feasible. The Franchisee
shall remove all debris stemming from excavation and construction. The Right-of-way surface
shall be restored by the Franchisee after excavation, in accordance with applicable City and
Franchisee specifications.
3.6 Emergency Work

In the event of an emergency requiring immediate action by the Franchisee to protect its
Facilities, or the property of the City or other persons in the Franchise Area, the Franchisee may
immediately proceed with excavation or other Right-of-way work, with concurrent notice to the
City to the extent possible.

SECTION 4.0 RESERVATION OF CITY'S RIGHTS AND POWERS

The City, in granting this Franchise, does not waive any rights which it may now have or
may subsequently acquire with respect to road rights-of-way or other property of City under this
Franchise, and this Franchise shall not be construed to deprive the City of any such powers,
rights or privileges which it now has or may hereafter acquire to regulate the use of and to control
the City's roads, rights of way and other public property covered by this Franchise. Nothing in the
terms of this Franchise shall be construed or deemed to prevent the City from exercising at any
time any power of eminent domain granted to it under the laws of this State.

4.1 Necessary Construction/Maintenance By City

The construction, operation and maintenance of the Franchisee's Facilities authorized by
this Franchise shall not preclude the City, its agents or its contractors, from grading, excavating,
or doing other necessary road work contiguous to the Franchisee’s Facilities, provided that the
Franchisee shall be given not less than ten business days' notice of said work, and provided
further that the City, its agents and contractors, shall be liable for any damages, including any

Page 4 of 10 5 8



consequential damages to third parties, caused by said work to any installations belonging to the
Franchisee.
4.2 Removal Of Abandoned Facilities

During the Term of this Franchise, or upon a revocation or non-renewal of this Franchise,
the City may direct the Franchisee to remove designated abandoned Facilities from the Franchise
Area at its own expense and as soon as practicable, but only where such abandoned Facilities
constitute a demonstrated threat to public health and safety. If it becomes necessary for the City
to remove the designated Facilities the City shall be paid the reasonable and actual costs of
removal by the Franchisee.
4.3 Vacation Of Properties By City

If, at any time, the City shall vacate any road, right of way or other public property which
is subject to rights granted by this Franchise, such vacation shall be subject to the reservation of a
perpetual easement to the Franchisee for the purpose of operating and maintaining the
Franchisee’s Facilities on the affected property. The City shall, in its vacation procedure, reserve
and grant said easement to the Franchisee for the Franchisee’s Facilities and shall also expressly
prohibit any use of the vacated properties which will interfere with the Franchisee's full
enjoyment and use of said easement.

SECTION 5.0 RELOCATION OF FRANCHISEE’S FACILITIES

5.1  Public Project Construction

Whenever the City causes the construction of any Public Project and/or the alteration or
improvement of any road, highway or Right-of-way within the Franchise Area, and such
construction necessitates the relocation of the Franchisee’s Facilities from their existing location
to another location within the Franchise Area, such relocation will be at no cost to the City. City
shall notify the Franchisee of any intended or expected requirement or request to relocate the
Franchisee’s Facilities as early as practicable, but not less than 90 days prior to any such
relocation. After receipt of such notice, the Franchisee shall complete relocation of its Facilities
at least ten days prior to commencement of the project or an agreed upon date by both parties. If
any relocation to accommodate the City forces the Franchisee off of a Right-of-way then City will
make a reasonable effort to accommodate said relocation on alternative public Right-of-way.
5.2 Public Project Related Relocation Costs

The City shall have no responsibility for the costs of the relocations described in Section
5.1 unless City has failed to provide the required advanced notice, then any and all reasonable
excess costs caused by the failure to provide such notice shall be paid by the City. If the City
requires the subsequent relocation of any the Franchisee Facilities previously relocated per
Section 5.1, due to a Public Project within five years from the date of the initial relocation, the
City shall bear the entire cost of such subsequent relocation.
5.3 Relocation Of Facilities Requested By Third Parties

If the Franchisee’s Facilities within the Franchise Area are to be relocated at the request
of or for the primary benefit of a third party (including compliance by such party with any
condition or requirement associated with approvals or permits to be obtained pursuant to any
zoning, land use, construction or other development regulation), the City shall not require the
Franchisee to relocate its Facilities until such time as the third party has entered into an

Page 5 of 10 5 9



agreement with the Franchisee for the up-front reimbursement of Facility relocation costs, as
specified by applicable tariffs.
5.4 Availability of Other Funds

In the event federal, state or other funds are available in whole or in part for utility
relocating purposes related to a Public Project, the City shall apply for such funds and the
Franchisee will be reimbursed to the extent any such funds are actually obtained.

SECTION 6.0 INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

6.1 Insurance

Within ninety (90) days following the grant of a franchise, the Franchisee shall obtain,
pay all premiums for and make available to the City at its request copies of the following
insurance policies:

(i) A general comprehensive liability policy indemnifying, defending and saving harmless

the City, its officers, boards, commissions, agents or employees from any and all claims
by any person whatsoever on account of injury to or death of a person or persons
occasioned by the operations of the Franchisee under the franchise herein granted, or
alleged to have been so caused or occurred, with a minimum liability of One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000) per personal injury or death of any one person, and Two Million
Dollars ($2,000,000) for personal injury or death of any two or more persons in any
one occurrence;

(ii) Property damage insurance for property damage occasioned by the operation of the
Franchisee under the franchise herein granted, or alleged to have been so caused or
occurred, with a minimum liability of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for property
damage to any one person and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) for property damage
to the property of two or more persons in any one occurrence;

(iii) All insurance policies called for herein shall be in a form satisfactory to the City and
shall require thirty (30) days written notice of any cancellation to both the City and the
Franchisee. The Franchisee shall, in the event of any such cancellation notice, obtain,
pay all premiums for, and file with the City, written evidence of the issuance of
replacement policies within thirty (30) days following receipt by the City or the
Franchisee of any notice of cancellation.

6.2 Indemnification of the City

The Franchisee agrees to defend and indemnify the City, its appointed and elected officers
and employees, from any and all liabilities, claims, causes of action, losses, damages and
expenses, including costs and reasonable attorney’s fees, that the City may sustain, incur, become
liable for, or be required to pay, as a consequence of or arising from the construction, installation,
maintenance, condition or operation of the Franchisee's Facilities in the Franchise Area;
provided, however, that this indemnification provision shall not apply to the extent that said
liabilities, claims, damages and losses were caused by or result from the negligence of the City, its
employees or agents.
6.3 Indemnification of the Franchisee

City agrees to defend and indemnify the Franchisee, its officers and employees, from any
and all liabilities, claims, causes of action, losses, damages and expenses, including costs and
reasonable attorney’s fees, that the Franchisee may sustain, incur, become liable for, or be

Page 6 of 10 6 O



required to pay, as a consequence of or arising from the negligent acts or omissions of the City, its
officers, employees or agents in connection with City’s obligations under this Franchise;
provided, however, that this indemnification provision shall not apply to the extent that said
liabilities, claims, damages, losses and so forth were caused by or result from the negligence of
the Franchisee, its employees or agents.

SECTION 7.0 FRANCHISE DISPUTE RESOLUTION

7.1 Non-waiver

Failure of a Party to declare any breach or default of this Franchise immediately upon the
occurrence thereof, or delay in taking any action in connection therewith, shall not waive such
breach or default, but the Party shall have the right to declare any such breach or default at any
time. Failure of a Party to declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of the Party’s
right to declare another breach or default. In addition, the pursuit of any right or remedy by the
City shall not prevent the City from thereafter declaring a revocation and forfeiture for breach of
the conditions of the Franchise.
7.2  Revocation and Forfeiture of Franchise

If the Franchisee shall willfully violate or fail to comply with any of the provisions of this
Franchise through willful and unreasonable neglect or willful and unreasonable failure to heed or
comply with any notice given the Franchisee under the provisions of this grant, this Franchise
may be revoked by the City and the Franchisee shall forfeit all rights conferred under the
Franchise; provided, however, the City shall give 9o-days’ written notice of its intention to revoke
the Franchise during which period the Franchisee shall have the opportunity to remedy any
breach.
7.3  Dispute Resolution by the Parties

Disputes regarding the interpretation or execution of the terms of this Franchise, that
cannot be resolved by Department counterparts representing the Parties, shall be submitted to
the City’s Attorney and a representative of the Franchisee’s Legal Department for resolution. If a
mutually satisfactory or timely resolution cannot then be reached by the above process, prior to
resorting to a court of competent jurisdiction, the Parties shall submit the dispute to a non-
binding alternate dispute resolution process agreed to by the Parties.
7.4  Right of Enforcement

No provision of this Franchise shall be deemed to bar the right of the City or the
Franchisee to seek judicial relief from a violation of any provision of the Franchise to recover
monetary damages for such violations by the other party or to seek enforcement of the other
Party’s obligations under this Franchise by means of specific performance, injunctive relief or any
other remedy at law or in equity. Any litigation between the City and the Franchisee arising
under or regarding this Franchise shall occur, if in the state courts, in Yakima County Superior
Court, and if in the federal courts, in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Washington.
7.5 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs

Each Party shall pay for its own attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in any dispute
resolution process or legal action arising out of the existence of this Franchise.

Page 7of 10 6 1



SECTION 8.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS

8.1 Franchise As Contract, No Third Party Beneficiaries

This Franchise is a contract between the Parties and binds and benefits the Parties and
their respective successors and assigns. This Franchise does not and is not intended to confer
any rights or remedies upon any persons, entities or beneficiaries other than the Parties.
8.2 Force Majeure

In the event that the Franchisee is delayed in or prevented from the performance of any of
its obligations under the Franchise by circumstances beyond the Franchisee’s control (Force
Majeure) including, without limitation, third party labor disputes, fire, explosion, flood,
earthquake, power outage, acts of God, epidemics and pandemics, war or other hostilities and
civil commotion, then the Franchisee’s performance shall be excused during the period of the
Force majeure occurrence. the Franchisee will use all commercially reasonable efforts to
minimize the period of the disability due to the occurrence. Upon removal or termination of the
occurrence the Franchisee will promptly resume performance of the affected Franchise
obligations in an orderly and expeditious manner.
8.3 Severability

The Franchise is granted pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington relating to the
granting of such rights and privileges by City. If any article, section, sentence, clause, or phrase
of this Franchise is for any reason held illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional, such invalidity shall
not affect the validity of the Franchise or any of the remaining portions. The invalidity of any
portion of this Franchise shall not abate, reduce, or otherwise affect any obligation required of
the Franchisee.
8.4 Changes or Amendments

No change or amendment to this Franchise shall be effective until lawfully adopted by the
City and agreed to by the Franchisee.
8.5 Supremacy and Governing Law

This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in all respects in accordance
with the laws of the State of Washington. In the event of any conflict between this Franchise and
any City ordinance, regulation or permit, the provisions of this Franchise shall control. In the
event of a conflict between the provisions of this Franchise and the Franchisee’s applicable Tariff
on file with the Commission, the Tariff shall control.
8.6 Headings

The headings or titles in this Franchise are for the purpose of reference only and shall not
in any way affect the interpretation or construction of this Franchise.
8.7 Acceptance of Franchise

The Franchisee shall, within 30 days after passage of this Ordinance, file with the City
Clerk, its acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Franchise.

8.8 Franchise Effective Date

The Effective Date of this Franchise shall be February 19, 2023, provided that it has been
duly accepted by the Franchisee as specified above. This Ordinance shall be in full force and
effective five (5) days following its passage, approval and publication.

Page 8 of 10 6 2



Passed and adopted by the City Council of the CITY OF GRANDVIEW, Washington the 14th day
of February, 2023.

Attest:
Mayor Gloria Mendoza Anita Palacios, City Clerk

Approved as to form and content:

Quinn Plant, City Attorney

PUBLICATION: 2/15/2023
EFFECTIVE: 2/19/2023

Page g of 10 6 3



Letter of Acceptance by Ziply Fiber Pacific, LLC Franchisee

HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF GRANDVIEW, STATE OF WASHINGTON

IN RE: City of GRANDVIEW, Ordinance No. 2023-03

“Granting a Franchise to Ziply Fiber Pacific, LLC Franchisee for the
Construction, Operation and Maintenance of Telecommunications
Facilities Within the City.”

Ziply Fiber Pacific, LLC, Franchisee, for itself, its successors and assigns, hereby accepts

the terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement contained in the subject Ordinance
and files this written acceptance with the City of Grandview. This acceptance is executed

on , 2023.

Ziply Fiber Pacific, LLC

By: Le=5 (1" :
George Baker Thomson, Jr.
Associate General Counsel

Copy Received for the City of Grandview
On: February 14, 2023

By: Mayor Gloria Mendoza

Mayor Gloria Mendoza

Page 10 of 10 6 4



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-04

AN ORDINANCE OF CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON GRANTING TO ZIPLY
WIRELESS, LLC, (ZW), A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, THE
NONEXCLUSIVE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE, AUTHORITY AND FRANCHISE TO LOCATE,
CONSTRUCT, INSTALL, OWN, MAINTAIN, REPAIR, REPLACE, EXTEND,
OPERATE AND USE FACILITIES IN, UPON, OVER, UNDER, ALONG, AND ACROSS
THE FRANCHISE AREA FOR PURPOSES OF THE TRANSMISSION,
DISTRIBUTION AND SALE OF TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND
COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

WHEREAS, Ziply Wireless, LLC, (hereinafter “ZW”), a Delaware limited liability
company, has filed with the City of Grandview, State of Washington (the "City") a written
application for a Franchise to locate, construct, operate, maintain a fiber optic communication
system and personal wireless services facility and use such works, underground and overhead
cables, equipment, pedestals, antenna and appurtenances over, under, along and across all of
City’s rights of way and public property in the City for the purposes of the transmission,
distribution and sale of wireline and wireless telecommunications and communications services;

WHEREAS, the City Council has found it desirable for the welfare of the City and its
residents that such non-exclusive franchise be granted to the Franchisee.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Grandview, Washington does hereby ordain as follows:
SECTION 1.0 DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Franchise the following terms, phrases, words and their
derivations shall have the meaning given in this Section. When not inconsistent with the context,
words used in the present tense include the future, words in the plural include the singular, and
words in the singular include the plural. Words not defined shall be given their common and
ordinary meaning,

1.1 Franchisee. “Franchisee” means Ziply Wireless, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, and its lawful successors, transferee and assignee thereof.

1.2  City. “City” means City of Grandview, a municipal corporation of the State of
Washington, and its respective successors and assigns.

1.3 Days. “Days” means business days.

1.4  Effective Date. “Effective Date” means the date of legal publication of this Ordinance,
upon which the rights, duties and obligations of this Franchise shall come into effect, and the
date from which the time requirement for any notice, extension and/or renewal shall be
measured.

1.5 Facilities. “Facilities” means, collectively, any and all transmission and distribution
systems and appurtenances owned by the Franchisee, now and in the future in the Franchise
Area, including but not limited to, poles, wires, pipes, conduits and other appliances and
conductors for such Telecommunications system.

1.6  Franchise. “Franchise” means the grant by the City of rights, privileges and authority

embodied in this Ordinance.
Page1of 10 6 5



1.7  Franchise Area. “Franchise Area” means the surface and space above and below all
rights-of-way for:

(i)  public roads, streets, avenues, alleys, bridges, tunnels, easements, and highways of the
City, as now laid out, platted, dedicated, acquired or improved within the present
corporate limits of the City;

(ii) public roads, streets, avenues, alleys, bridges, tunnels, easements, and highways that
may hereafter be laid out, platted, dedicated, acquired or improved within the present
corporate limits of the City and as such limits may be extended by annexation or
otherwise during the term of this Franchise;

(iii) all City-owned utility easements dedicated for the placement and location of various
utilities, provided such easements would permit the Franchisee to fully exercise the
rights granted under this Franchise within the area covered by the easement; and

(iv) any other specifically designated City-owned property.

1.8 Maintenance, maintaining, or maintain. The meaning of the terms “Maintenance,
maintaining, or maintain” includes, without limit, repairing, replacing, upgrading, examining,
testing, inspecting, and removing the Franchisee Facilities, vegetation management, digging and
excavating, and restoration of affected right-of-way surfaces.

1.9 Parties. “Parties” means City and the Franchisee collectively.

1.10 Party. “Party” means either City or the Franchisee individually.

1.11  Person. “Person” means a business entity or natural person.

1.12 Public Project. “Public Project” means any City or other government-funded capital
improvement project on the Rights-of-way or City property within the Franchise Area.

1.13 Right-of-way. “Right-of-way” means the surface of and the space along, above, and
below any street, road, highway, freeway, lane, sidewalk, alley, utility easement and/or right-of-
way now or hereafter held or administered by the City.

1.14 State. “State” means the State of Washington.

SECTION 2.0 GRANT OF FRANCHISE

City hereby grants to the Franchisee the right, power, privilege and authority to enter
upon all roads, rights of way, streets, alleys, highways, public places or structures, lying within
the Franchise Area to locate, construct, operate and maintain its Facilities for the maintenance
and operation of a telecommunications and communications system within the Franchise Area.
2.1 Effective Date

This Ordinance is effective as of the date of approval, passage and publication as required
by law.

2.2 Term

The rights, privileges and Franchise hereby granted to the Franchisee will extend for a
term of 25 years from the Effective Date, and shall continue year-to-year thereafter, until it is
otherwise renewed for another 25-year term, or terminated by either Party, with not less than
180 days prior written notice to the other Party.

2.3 Non-Exclusive Franchise

This Franchise is not an exclusive Franchise. This Franchise shall not prohibit the City

from granting other franchises within the Franchise Area.

Page2of 10 6 6



2.4 Assignment Of Franchise
The Franchisee shall have the right to assign its rights, benefits and privileges under this
Franchise. Any assignee shall, within thirty (30) days of the date of any assignment, file written
notice of the assignment with the City together with its written acceptance of all terms and
conditions of this Franchise. As permitted by law and Commission regulation, the Franchisee
shall have the right, without notice to or consent of the City, to mortgage or hypothecate its
rights, benefits and privileges in and under this Franchise as security for indebtedness.

2.5 Franchise Taxes, Fees and Costs

The Franchisee shall pay all permitting, license fees, costs and/or utility privilege taxes
which it might be required to pay in connection with the issuance, maintenance, existence,
continuation, or use of this Franchise, to the extent permitted by State law or the City ordinance
now in effect or enacted during the term of this Franchise. The City reserves the right to
designate the time and manner of payment of such fees, costs or taxes owed by the Franchisee in
connection with this Franchise. To the extent that any Franchise fees, taxes or other costs are
imposed on the Franchisee, as specifically provided by RCW 35.21.860, the city may not impose a
franchise fee or any other fee or charge of whatever nature or description upon revenues derived
by ZW for use of the right-of-way.

SECTION 3.0 FRANCHISEE’S OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

3.1 Compliance with Laws, Regulations, Codes and Standards

In carrying out any authorized activities under the privileges granted by this Franchise,
the Franchisee shall meet accepted industry standards and codes and shall comply with all
applicable laws, regulations and ordinances of any governmental entity with jurisdiction over the
Franchisee’s Facilities in the Franchise Area. This includes all applicable, laws, regulations and
ordinances existing as of the Effective Date or may be subsequently enacted by any governmental
entity with jurisdiction over the Franchisee’s operations within the Franchise Area. The City shall
have the right to make and enforce reasonable rules and regulations pertaining to the conduct of
the Franchisee's operations within the Franchise Area. Prior to the adoption of any new rule,
procedure or policy, the Franchisee shall be provided a written draft document for comment with
a response period of not less than thirty days.
3.2 Facility Location and Non-Interference

The Franchisee shall have the discretion to determine the placement of its Facilities as may

be necessary to provide safe and reliable telecommunications service within the Franchise Area,
subject to the following non-interference requirements. All construction, installation, repair or
relocation of the Franchisee’s Facilities performed by the Franchisee in the Franchise Area will be
done in such a manner as not to interfere with the construction and maintenance of other
utilities, drains, drainage and irrigation ditches and structures, and City-owned property within
the Franchise Area.
3.3 Facility Location Information

The Franchisee shall provide the City, upon the City's reasonable request, Facility location
information in electronic or hard copy showing the location of its Facilities at specific locations
within the Franchised Area, to the extent such information is reasonably available. The
Franchisee does not warrant the accuracy of any such Facility location information provided and,

Page 3 of 10 6 ;



to the extent the location of Facilities is shown, such Facilities may be shown in their
approximate location. With respect to any excavations within the Franchise Area undertaken by
or on behalf of the Franchisee or the City, nothing stated in this Franchise is intended (nor shall
be construed) to relieve either party of their respective obligations arising under the State one-
call law with respect to determining the location of existing underground utility facilities in the
vicinity of such excavations prior to commencing work.
3.4 Vegetation Management

The right of the Franchisee to maintain its Facilities shall include the right, as exercised in
the Franchisee's professional discretion, to utilize an integrated vegetation management program
to minimize the likelihood that encroaching (either above or below the ground) vegetation can
interfere with or limit access to the Franchisee’s Facilities or pose a threat to public safety and
welfare. The Franchisee or its agents may accordingly remove or limit the growth of vegetation
which encroaches upon its Telecommunications transmission and distribution corridors within
the Franchise Area.
3.5 Right Of Excavation

For the purpose of implementing the privileges granted under this Franchise, and after
any required notification is made to the City, the Franchisee is authorized to make any necessary
excavations in, under and across the streets, alleys, roads, rights of way and public grounds
within the Franchise Area. Such excavation shall be carried out with reasonable dispatch and
with as little interference with or inconvenience to the public as may be feasible. The Franchisee
shall remove all debris stemming from excavation and construction. The Right-of-way surface
shall be restored by the Franchisee after excavation, in accordance with applicable City and
Franchisee specifications.
3.6 Emergency Work

In the event of an emergency requiring immediate action by the Franchisee to protect its
Facilities, or the property of the City or other persons in the Franchise Area, the Franchisee may
immediately proceed with excavation or other Right-of-way work, with concurrent notice to the
City to the extent possible.

SECTION 4.0 RESERVATION OF CITY'S RIGHTS AND POWERS

The City, in granting this Franchise, does not waive any rights which it may now have or
may subsequently acquire with respect to road rights-of-way or other property of City under this
Franchise, and this Franchise shall not be construed to deprive the City of any such powers,
rights or privileges which it now has or may hereafter acquire to regulate the use of and to control
the City's roads, rights of way and other public property covered by this Franchise. Nothing in the
terms of this Franchise shall be construed or deemed to prevent the City from exercising at any
time any power of eminent domain granted to it under the laws of this State.

4.1  Necessary Construction/Maintenance By City

The construction, operation and maintenance of the Franchisee's Facilities authorized by
this Franchise shall not preclude the City, its agents or its contractors, from grading, excavating,
or doing other necessary road work contiguous to the Franchisee’s Facilities, provided that the
Franchisee shall be given not less than ten business days' notice of said work, and provided
further that the City, its agents and contractors, shall be liable for any damages, including any

Page 4 of 10 6 8



consequential damages to third parties, caused by said work to any installations belonging to the
Franchisee.
4.2 Removal Of Abandoned Facilities

During the Term of this Franchise, or upon a revocation or non-renewal of this Franchise,
the City may direct the Franchisee to remove designated abandoned Facilities from the Franchise
Area at its own expense and as soon as practicable, but only where such abandoned Facilities
constitute a demonstrated threat to public health and safety. If it becomes necessary for the City
to remove the designated Facilities the City shall be paid the reasonable and actual costs of
removal by the Franchisee.
4.3 Vacation Of Properties By City

If, at any time, the City shall vacate any road, right of way or other public property which
is subject to rights granted by this Franchise, such vacation shall be subject to the reservation of a
perpetual easement to the Franchisee for the purpose of operating and maintaining the
Franchisee’s Facilities on the affected property. The City shall, in its vacation procedure, reserve
and grant said easement to the Franchisee for the Franchisee’s Facilities and shall also expressly
prohibit any use of the vacated properties which will interfere with the Franchisee's full
enjoyment and use of said easement.

SECTION 5.0 RELOCATION OF FRANCHISEE’S FACILITIES

5.1  Public Project Construction

Whenever the City causes the construction of any Public Project and/or the alteration or
improvement of any road, highway or Right-of-way within the Franchise Area, and such
construction necessitates the relocation of the Franchisee’s Facilities from their existing location
to another location within the Franchise Area, such relocation will be at no cost to the City. City
shall notify the Franchisee of any intended or expected requirement or request to relocate the
Franchisee’s Facilities as early as practicable, but not less than 9o days prior to any such
relocation. After receipt of such notice, the Franchisee shall complete relocation of its Facilities
at least ten days prior to commencement of the project or an agreed upon date by both parties. If
any relocation to accommodate the City forces the Franchisee off of a Right-of-way then City will
make a reasonable effort to accommodate said relocation on alternative public Right-of-way.
5.2 Public Project Related Relocation Costs

The City shall have no responsibility for the costs of the relocations described in Section
5.1 unless City has failed to provide the required advanced notice, then any and all reasonable
excess costs caused by the failure to provide such notice shall be paid by the City. If the City
requires the subsequent relocation of any the Franchisee Facilities previously relocated per
Section 5.1, due to a Public Project within five years from the date of the initial relocation, the
City shall bear the entire cost of such subsequent relocation.
5.3 Relocation Of Facilities Requested By Third Parties

If the Franchisee’s Facilities within the Franchise Area are to be relocated at the request
of or for the primary benefit of a third party (including compliance by such party with any
condition or requirement associated with approvals or permits to be obtained pursuant to any
zoning, land use, construction or other development regulation), the City shall not require the
Franchisee to relocate its Facilities until such time as the third party has entered into an

Page 5 of 10 6 9



agreement with the Franchisee for the up-front reimbursement of Facility relocation costs, as
specified by applicable tariffs.
5.4 Availability of Other Funds

In the event federal, state or other funds are available in whole or in part for utility
relocating purposes related to a Public Project, the City shall apply for such funds and the
Franchisee will be reimbursed to the extent any such funds are actually obtained.

SECTION 6.0 INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

6.1 Insurance

Within ninety (90) days following the grant of a franchise, the Franchisee shall obtain,
pay all premiums for and make available to the City at its request copies of the following
insurance policies:

(i) A general comprehensive liability policy indemnifying, defending and saving harmless

the City, its officers, boards, commissions, agents or employees from any and all claims
by any person whatsoever on account of injury to or death of a person or persons
occasioned by the operations of the Franchisee under the franchise herein granted, or
alleged to have been so caused or occurred, with a minimum liability of One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000) per personal injury or death of any one person, and Two Million
Dollars ($2,000,000) for personal injury or death of any two or more persons in any
one occurrence;

(ii) Property damage insurance for property damage occasioned by the operation of the
Franchisee under the franchise herein granted, or alleged to have been so caused or
occurred, with a minimum liability of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for property
damage to any one person and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) for property damage
to the property of two or more persons in any one occurrence;

(iii) All insurance policies called for herein shall be in a form satisfactory to the City and
shall require thirty (30) days written notice of any cancellation to both the City and the
Franchisee. The Franchisee shall, in the event of any such cancellation notice, obtain,
pay all premiums for, and file with the City, written evidence of the issuance of
replacement policies within thirty (30) days following receipt by the City or the
Franchisee of any notice of cancellation.

6.2 Indemnification of the City

The Franchisee agrees to defend and indemnify the City, its appointed and elected officers
and employees, from any and all liabilities, claims, causes of action, losses, damages and
expenses, including costs and reasonable attorney’s fees, that the City may sustain, incur, become
liable for, or be required to pay, as a consequence of or arising from the construction, installation,
maintenance, condition or operation of the Franchisee's Facilities in the Franchise Area;
provided, however, that this indemnification provision shall not apply to the extent that said
liabilities, claims, damages and losses were caused by or result from the negligence of the City, its
employees or agents.
6.3 Indemnification of the Franchisee

City agrees to defend and indemnify the Franchisee, its officers and employees, from any
and all liabilities, claims, causes of action, losses, damages and expenses, including costs and
reasonable attorney’s fees, that the Franchisee may sustain, incur, become liable for, or be

Page 6 of 10 ; O



required to pay, as a consequence of or arising from the negligent acts or omissions of the City, its
officers, employees or agents in connection with City’s obligations under this Franchise;
provided, however, that this indemnification provision shall not apply to the extent that said
liabilities, claims, damages, losses and so forth were caused by or result from the negligence of
the Franchisee, its employees or agents.

SECTION 7.0 FRANCHISE DISPUTE RESOLUTION

7.1 Non-waiver

Failure of a Party to declare any breach or default of this Franchise immediately upon the
occurrence thereof, or delay in taking any action in connection therewith, shall not waive such
breach or default, but the Party shall have the right to declare any such breach or default at any
time. Failure of a Party to declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of the Party’s
right to declare another breach or default. In addition, the pursuit of any right or remedy by the
City shall not prevent the City from thereafter declaring a revocation and forfeiture for breach of
the conditions of the Franchise.
7.2 Revocation and Forfeiture of Franchise

If the Franchisee shall willfully violate or fail to comply with any of the provisions of this
Franchise through willful and unreasonable neglect or willful and unreasonable failure to heed or
comply with any notice given the Franchisee under the provisions of this grant, this Franchise
may be revoked by the City and the Franchisee shall forfeit all rights conferred under the
Franchise; provided, however, the City shall give 9o-days' written notice of its intention to revoke
the Franchise during which period the Franchisee shall have the opportunity to remedy any
breach.
7.3 Dispute Resolution by the Parties

Disputes regarding the interpretation or execution of the terms of this Franchise, that
cannot be resolved by Department counterparts representing the Parties, shall be submitted to
the City’s Attorney and a representative of the Franchisee’s Legal Department for resolution. If a
mutually satisfactory or timely resolution cannot then be reached by the above process, prior to
resorting to a court of competent jurisdiction, the Parties shall submit the dispute to a non-
binding alternate dispute resolution process agreed to by the Parties.
7.4 Right of Enforcement

No provision of this Franchise shall be deemed to bar the right of the City or the
Franchisee to seek judicial relief from a violation of any provision of the Franchise to recover
monetary damages for such violations by the other party or to seek enforcement of the other
Party’s obligations under this Franchise by means of specific performance, injunctive relief or any
other remedy at law or in equity. Any litigation between the City and the Franchisee arising
under or regarding this Franchise shall occur, if in the state courts, in Yakima County Superior
Court, and if in the federal courts, in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Washington.
7.5 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs

Each Party shall pay for its own attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in any dispute
resolution process or legal action arising out of the existence of this Franchise.

Page 7 of 10 ? 1



SECTION 8.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS

8.1  Franchise As Contract, No Third Party Beneficiaries

This Franchise is a contract between the Parties and binds and benefits the Parties and
their respective successors and assigns. This Franchise does not and is not intended to confer
any rights or remedies upon any persons, entities or beneficiaries other than the Parties.
8.2 Force Majeure

In the event that the Franchisee is delayed in or prevented from the performance of any of
its obligations under the Franchise by circumstances beyond the Franchisee's control (Force
Majeure) including, without limitation, third party labor disputes, fire, explosion, flood,
earthquake, power outage, acts of God, epidemics and pandemics, war or other hostilities and
civil commotion, then the Franchisee’s performance shall be excused during the period of the
Force majeure occurrence. the Franchisee will use all commercially reasonable efforts to
minimize the period of the disability due to the occurrence. Upon removal or termination of the
occurrence the Franchisee will promptly resume performance of the affected Franchise
obligations in an orderly and expeditious manner.
8.3 Severability

The Franchise is granted pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington relating to the
granting of such rights and privileges by City. If any article, section, sentence, clause, or phrase
of this Franchise is for any reason held illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional, such invalidity shall
not affect the validity of the Franchise or any of the remaining portions. The invalidity of any
portion of this Franchise shall not abate, reduce, or otherwise affect any obligation required of
the Franchisee.
8.4 Changes or Amendments

No change or amendment to this Franchise shall be effective until lawfully adopted by the
City and agreed to by the Franchisee.
8.5 Supremacy and Governing Law

This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in all respects in accordance
with the laws of the State of Washington. In the event of any conflict between this Franchise and
any City ordinance, regulation or permit, the provisions of this Franchise shall control. In the
event of a conflict between the provisions of this Franchise and the Franchisee’s applicable Tariff
on file with the Commission, the Tariff shall control.
8.6 Headings

The headings or titles in this Franchise are for the purpose of reference only and shall not
in any way affect the interpretation or construction of this Franchise.
8.7 Acceptance of Franchise

The Franchisee shall, within 30 days after passage of this Ordinance, file with the City
Clerk, its acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Franchise.

8.8 Franchise Effective Date

The Effective Date of this Franchise shall be February 19, 2023, provided that it has been
duly accepted by the Franchisee as specified above. This Ordinance shall be in full force and
effective five (5) days following its passage, approval and publication.

Page 8 of 10 ? 2



Passed and adopted by the City Council of the CITY OF GRANDVIEW, Washington the 14t day of
February, 2023.

Attest:
Mayor Gloria Mendoza Anita Palacios, City Clerk

Approved as to form and content:

Quinn Plant, City Attorney

PUBLICATION: 2/15/2023
EFFECTIVE: 2/19/2023

Page g of 10 ; 3



Letter of Acceptance by Ziply Wireless, L1.C Franchisee

HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF GRANDVIEW, STATE OF WASHINGTON

IN RE: City of GRANDVIEW, Ordinance No. 2023-04

“Granting a Franchise to Ziply Wireless, LLC Franchisee for the
Construction, Operation and Maintenance of Telecommunications
Facilities Within the City.”

Ziply Wireless, LLC, Franchisee, for itself, its successors and assigns, hereby accepts the
terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement contained in the subject Ordinance and
files this written acceptance with the City of Grandview. This acceptance is executed on

, 2023.

Ziply Wireless, LLC

By:@%’tﬁ\ -

George Baker Thomson, Jr.
Associate General Counsel

Copy Received for the City of Grandview
On: February 14, 2023

By: Mayor Gloria Mendoza

Mayor Gloria Mendoza

Page 10 of 10 ; 4



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-07

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
APPROVING TASK ORDER NO. 2023-01 WITH HLA ENGINEERING AND LAND
SURVEYING, INC., FOR THE EAST GAME POND PIPELINE REPLACEMENT

WHEREAS, the City of Grandview has entered into a General Services
Agreement with HLA Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., {HLA) for work pursuant to
task orders; and,

WHEREAS, the City would like to enter into a Task Order with HLA to provide
professional engineering and land surveying services for the East Game Pond Pipeline
Replacement,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, AS FOLLOWS:

The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign Task Order No. 2023-01 with HLA
Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., for the East Game Pond Pipeline Replacement
with an estimated fee for services in the amount of $95,000.00 for design engineering
and $110,000.00 for construction engineering, in the form as is attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at a special
meeting on February 14, 2023,

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

5



TJASK ORDER NO. 2023-01

REGARDING GENERAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF GRANDVIEW
AND
HLA ENGINEERING AND LAND SURVEYING, INC. (HLA)

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

East Game Pond Pipeline Replagcement
HLA Project No. 23037E

The existing irrigation pipeline serving the East Game Ponds at the City's Wastewater Treatment Piant
(WWTP) was severely damaged in a wildfire and needs to be replaced. The City received authorization
from their insurance provider for $750,000 to complete the repairs. Additional funding up to $300,000 is
also anticipated to be provided by the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife (WDFW) to support the
pipeline replacement project through pre-purchase of materials and/or reimbursement of engineering coslts.
WDFW funding must be spent by June 30, 2023. The scope of services included in this Task order will
include furnishing final plans and specifications, bidding support services, and construction engineering
services.

SCOPE OF SERVICES:

At the direction of the City of Grandview (CITY), HLA shall provide professional engineering services for
the East Game Pond Pipeline Replacement project (PROJECT). HLA services shall include the following:

1.6 _Design Enginesring

1.1 Perform field investigations as necessary to design the identified improvements.

1.2 Call for utility locates prior to survey and perform topographic survey of the PROJECT area as
required to complete design, plans, and specifications.

1.3 Prepare site topographic survey in AutoCAD format showing field-located improvemenlis and
utilities.

1.4  Attend two (2) design meetings with the CITY to obtain input regarding existing and proposed
improvements.

1.5 Assist CITY with preparation of an interlocal agreement with WDFW for participation in the
PROJECT. WDFW participation in the project is anticipated to include pre-purchase of pipeline
replacement materials and reimbursement of engineering expenses. Provide material
quantities and specifications to WDFW for material pre-purchase bid package. Bid package,
advertisement, and contract award to be completed by WDFW.

1.6 Prepare final design plans, specifications, and estimate for the CITY and provide a complete
plan set, including plan sheets with construction notes and plan details.

1.7 Upon autharization from the CITY, furnish electronic copies of final documents suitable for
bidding. Five (5) printed copies of the contract documents will be made for later distribution lo
the CITY and Contractor after the contract is awarded. Itis assumed no more than one (1) bid
package will be prepared corresponding to one (1) construction phase.

1.8 Prepare the advertisement for bids and transmit to newspapers as selected by the CITY.
Advertising fees will be paid by the CITY.

Wre02iGenaraliConlracts & Task Orders\Grandview\202312023-01-25 23037E Task Order No. 2023-01 East Game Pond Pipeline Replacement.Docx
Page 1 of



1.9 Post contract documents to HLA website for potential bidders and plan center access and
maintain planhoider list.

1.10 Notify dry utility companies of pending construction, including power, cable, natural gas, and
telephone and direct them to HLA website for plans and specifications.

1.11 Answer and supply such information as requested by prospective bidders.
1.12 Prepare and issue addenda to contract documents, if necessary.

1.13 Attend PROJECT bid opening, check and tabulate bids, and make recommendation of award
to lowest responsible bidder.

1.14 Prepare administrative documents to the appropriate agencies which have jurisdiction over
funding, design, and construction of the PROJECT.

2.0 Construction Engineering

21 Following award of the Contract by the CITY, prepare and transmit Notice of Award to the
Contractor.

22 Coordinate execution of construction contract with the CITY and Contractor, including review
of bond and insurance requirements.

2.3 Coordinate and facilitate the preconstruction meeting with the CITY, Contraclor, private utilities,
and affected agencies.

24 Prepare and issue Notice to Proceed to the Contractor.

2.5 Furnish field survey crew necessary to set horizontal and vertical control for the PROJECT,
including construction staking.

28 Furnish a qualified resident engineer (inspector) to observe PROJECT construction for
substantial compliance with plans and specifications and CITY Construction Standards.

2.7 Provide submitlal review for PROJECT materials as provided by the Contractor per the
PROJECT specifications.

2.8 Field measure and/or compute pay item quantities. Prepare and file PROJECT progress
reports with the CITY, and provide monthly progress pay estimates to the CITY.,

2.9 Interpret plans and specifications when necessary.

2.10 Administer coordinated construction progress meetings for the PROJECT, anticipated to be a
maximum of one (1) per week throughout construction duration.

2.11 Consult and advise the CITY during construction and make a final report of the completed work.

2.12 If required, monitor Contractor and subcontraclor compliance with State labor standards during
construction, including checking monthly certified payrolls, conducting employee interviews in
the field, and issuing letiers of non-compliance and/or lelters of missing documents.

2.13 Review materials testing results for compliance with the plans and specifications.

2.14 Prepare and submit proposed contract change orders when applicable.

215 Conduct final PROJECT walk-through inspection with the CITY and Contractor and prepare
final punch list of items to be corrected by the Contractor and provide to the CITY.

WEsO2\General\Contracts & Task Crders\Grandview\202312023-01-25 23037E Task Order No, 2023-01 East Game Pond Pipeline Replacement.Docx
Page 2 of



216 Prepare and fumish record drawings and field notes of all completed work from as buill
drawings and field records provided by the resident engineer and Contractor.

217 Prepare final pay estimate and contract closeout package.

3.0 Additional Services

3.1, Provide professional engineering and construction services for additional work requested hy
the CITY that is not included in this Task Order.

4.0 Items to be Furnished and Responsibility of the CITY

The CITY will provide or perform the following:
4.1, Provide full information as to CITY requirements of the PROJECT.

4.2. Assist HLA by providing all available information pertinent 1o the PROJECT, including previous

reports, drawings, plats, surveys, utility records, and any other data relative to design and
construction.

4.3. Examine all studies, reports, sketches, estimates, specifications, drawings, proposals, and
other documents presented by HLA, and provide written decisions within a reasonabie time so
as not to delay the work of HLA.

4.4. Obtain approval of all governmental authorities with jurisdiction over the PROJECT, and
approvals and consents from other individuals or bodies as necessary for completion. Pay all
review fees and costs associated with obtaining such approvals.

4.5. Pay for project bid advertisement costs.

TIME OF PERFORMANCE:
Following receipt of signed Task Order, HLA will diligently pursue compietion of the PROJECT as follows:

1.0 _Design Engineering

HLA will provide plans, specifications, and eslimate within sixty (60) calendar days from the date of receipt
of signed Task Order. Final plans, specifications, and estimate for the PROJECT are intended to be
completed in time for bid advertisement in April 2023 and construction contract award in May 2023,

2.0 Construction Engineering

Construction engineering services for the PROJECT shall begin upon construction contract award by the
CITY to the lowest responsibie bidder and shall extend through the completion of construction, and
completion of as-constructed drawings. A maximum of fifty {50) working days has been assumed for the
construction of all improvements. Should either the Contractor be granted time extensions for construction
completion due to recognized delays, requested additional work, and/or change orders, construction
engineering services beyond fifty (50) total working days shall be considered additional services.

3.0 Additional Services

Time for completion of work directed by the CITY under additional services shall be negotiated and mutually
agreed upon at the time service is requested by the CITY.

Ws02\GeneraliConlracts & Task Orders\GrandviewA202312023-01-25 23037E Task Order No, 2023-01 East Game Pond Pipeline Replacemenl. Dotx
Page 3 of



FEE FOR SERVICE:

For the services furnished by HLA as described in this Task Order, the CITY agrees to pay HLA the fees
as set forth herein. The amounts listed below may be revised only by writlen agreement of both parties .

1.0__Design Engineering
All work for design engineering shall be performed for the flump sum fee of $95,000.00.

2.0 Construction Engineering

All work for construction engineering services shall be performed on a time-spent basis at the normai hourly
billing rates included in our General Agreement, plus reimbursement for non-salary expenses for an
estimated fee of $110,000.00.

3.0 __Additional Services

Additional work requested by the CITY not included in this Task Order shall be authorized by the CITY and
agreed upon by HLA in writing prior to proceeding with services. HLA will perform additional services as
directed/authorized by the CITY on a time-spent basis at the hourly billing rates included in our General
Agreement, pius reimbursement for direct non salary expenses such as laboratory testing, printing
expenses, vehicle mileage, out-of-town travel costs, and outside consultants.

Proposed: k'_ég i LAl ‘/_‘/2 -TADZ?

HLA Engiﬁeen‘ng and La ey ig, ne. Date
Michael T. Battle, PE, President

Approved:

City of Grandview Date
Gloria Mendoza, Mayor

WFs02\Genaral\Contracls & Task Orders\Grandviewh\202312023-01-25 23037 Task Order No, 2023-01 Eas Game Pond Pipelina Replacement.Does
Page 4 of



